








BOARD OF EDUCATION
MEETING

++ +

December 7, 2020




BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
DECEMBER 7, 2020 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET
6:00 P.M.

AGENDA

The December 7, 2020 Board of Education meeting will be held at 5606 South 147th Street, Omaha, NE. For public health
purposes associated with COVID-19, this meeting can also be attended by videoconference through “ZOOM” with access
available to the public and media. The Zoom link is https://mpsomaha-org.zoom.us/j/96386289622 and
can also be found at www.mpsomaha.org/board.

A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and on the Millard Public Schools website.
It is available for public inspection.

B. Pledge of Allegiance
C. Roll Call

D. Employee of the Month - Dayna Derichs, Media Specialist at Wheeler Elementary and Katie Kintzle, Head
Nurse for the District.

E. Public Comments on agenda items — This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.
If you wish to address the board you must attend the meeting in person. Please make sure a request form is given to the
Board President before the meeting begins.

F. Routine Matters
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes - November 16, 2020
2. *Approval of Bills and receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File

G. Information Items
1. Superintendent’s Comments
2. Board Comments/Announcements
3. Report from Student Representatives

H. Unfinished Business - None

I.  New Business

Approval of Construction Manager at Risk Contracts for 2020 Bond Projects
Approval of Schematic Design for Norris Elementary School

Approval of Schematic Design for North Middle School

Approval of Schematic Design for Central Middle School

Approval of Contract for Millard North High School Bleacher Replacement
Approval of Contract for Abbott Elementary School Re-Roofing Phase 3 of 3
Approval of Contract for Bryan Elementary School Paving Replacement Phase 2 of 2
Approval of Contract for Disney Elementary School Rooftop Unit Replacement

NN R LD


https://mpsomaha-org.zoom.us/j/96386289622
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10JTWfCsQBLcH-Jj1Au4_MHWFpwX15rwT/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1MROteTWLH_b977HqDJDFOw7dq6cUoF0p/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZmZHrSAWNSh8VvwkjleNyd58JH2TPSXf/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a5pLgypv8WiTJRYWWf3c3-2OiUV6gddp/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1j2hoGYfimbCC4eS6qUPUGYOLyBO7-Uk7/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1hwJepWxN0l7ZauExx2e4OVp2sdinO-_S/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19iSEbdPF_q_uIwjxRdK-m5vHz8beKRLZ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NfDNFCp5gySfyeCBzRKxwxSe01ytar88/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ERUTenbOThjhj34KAL9R6PvKe2wjAiHK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Wea-xly8Vi4nnF_Z6JyFMIm68Ja74fzk/view?usp=sharing

9. Approval of Contract for Morton Elementary School Rooftop Unit Replacement

10. Approval of Contract for Central Middle School Annex Rooftop Unit Replacement

11. Approval of the 2021 Summer School Proposal

12. Ratification of Adjusted High School Finals Week Schedule

13. Approval of 2020-2021 Resolution & Guidelines of the Board of Education

14. Approval of 2021-22 Within District Transfer and Option Enrollment Capacity Standards

15. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignation Notification Incentive (RNI), Voluntary Separation Program (VSP),
Resignation

16. Executive Session - Superintendent Evaluation

J.  Reports
1. 2020-21 Open, Option, & Transfer Enrollment Report
2. Advanced Placement Report
3. International Baccalaureate Diploma Programme Report
4. Legislative Report
5. District Update

K. Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar

Winter Break - No School Monday, December 21, 2020 — January 1, 2021

No School for Students - Teacher Work Day on Monday, January 4, 2021

Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 4, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC

Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 11, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC

No School for Students on January 18, 2021 for Martin Luther King Jr. Day — Staff Development Day
Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC

IR e

L. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. If you wish to address the
board you must attend the meeting in person. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the
meeting begins.

M. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion. Items may
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.


https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mdc3TPOdQD25fVZYaiqVW2RoVAFb09kk/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FEmeQXaUaSs-BzUd7-NxbD4K6oLzMufb/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Xe6ixsJJF4swSUdA38-qNn0xXu49Obgd/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1RmLFD7WiVQ-mwlUfMEW_Scc_2DNj2X9s/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Ib1W_bSdNz1MQD3jVI1Aq89KGXNv1Rnk/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IBmMDgME6lxeu1Z1aub5tBpBVUu02vP9/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1XFSTRYTAMnujkK9-Bv1YYRuNZb5W1MTs/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1XFSTRYTAMnujkK9-Bv1YYRuNZb5W1MTs/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1N_QmKaTykk-5Q_L-nQsNA7D7A5skBqhy/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19e522z8ZxD443vxcuXAUdy3tH6T6PZP5/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/17yVnXn9aG7qRbf3KWK_RLtBVGy6VWz_D/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing

BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
OMAHA, NEBRASKA
BOARD MEETING DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
DECEMBER 7, 2020 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET

6:00 P.M.

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM
A. Call to Order
The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.
B. Pledge of Allegiance
C. Roll Call

D. Employee of the Month - Dayna Derichs, Media Specialist at Wheeler Elementary and Katie Kintzle, Head
Nurse for the District.

E. Public Comments on agenda items — This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

F.1* Motion by , seconded by , to approve the Board of Education Minutes from November 16,
2020. (See enclosure)

F.2* Motion by , seconded by , to approve the bills, receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on
File. (See enclosure)

G.1 Superintendent’s Comments

G.2 Board Comments/Announcements
G.3  Report from Student Representatives
H.1 Unfinished Business - None

I.L1 Motion by , seconded by , that the (1) the District’s Construction Manager at Risk
contract for the Norris Elementary School 2020 bond project and the Central Middle School 2020 bond project be
awarded to The Weitz Company pending final negotiations; and (2) that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized and
directed to negotiate and execute contracts with The Weitz Company related to said projects; and (3) in the event that
negotiations with Weitz for a final contract are not concluded in a manner satisfactory to the District, the Chief Financial
Officer is authorized to begin negotiations with the second place company and to bring back an alternate
recommendation to the Board of Education. (See enclosure)

1.2 Motion by , seconded by , that the schematic design for the Norris Elementary School
project be approved as submitted. (See enclosure)



I3

1.4

L5

1.6

1.7

I.8

1.9

I.10

I.12

I.13

.14

L15

I.16

J.

Motion by , seconded by , that the schematic design for the North Middle School
project be approved as submitted. (See enclosure)

Motion by , seconded by , that the schematic design for the Central Middle School
project be approved as submitted. (See enclosure)

Motion by , seconded by , that the contract for the Millard North High School Bleacher
Replacement be awarded to Crouch Recreation in the amount of $320,519 and that the Chief Financial Officer be
authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure)

Motion by , seconded by , that the contract for the Abbott Elementary School Re-Roofing
Phase 3 of 3 be awarded to White Castle Roofing in the amount of $195,000 and that the Chief Financial Officer be
authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure)

Motion by , seconded by , that the contract for the Bryan Elementary School Paving
Replacement Phase 2 of 2 be awarded to Carley Construction in the amount of $257,236.50 and that the Chief Financial
Officer be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure)

Motion by , seconded by , that the contract for the Disney Elementary School Rooftop Unit
Replacement be awarded to Eyman Plumbing Heating and Air in the amount of $744,400 and that the Chief Financial
Officer be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure)

Motion by , seconded by , that the contract for the Morton Elementary School Rooftop Unit
Replacement be awarded to MMC Mechanical Contractors in the amount of $454,500 and that the Chief Financial
Officer be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure)
Motion by , seconded by , that the contract for the Central Middle School Annex Rooftop
Unit Replacement be awarded to Ray Martin Company in the amount of $118,500 and that the Chief Financial Officer
be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure)
Motion by , seconded by , to approve the 2021 Summer School Proposal. (See enclosure)
Motion by , seconded by , to ratify the Adjusted High School Finals Week Schedule. (See
enclosure)
Motion by , seconded by , to approve the 2020-2021 Resolution & Guidelines of the Board of
Education. This gives limited authority to the Superintendent to make decisions while remaining in this state of
emergency regarding school during the time period that exceeds 10 days between the Board of Education meetings of
December 7, 2020 to January 4, 2021. The ratification from the Board of Education would occur on January 4, 2021.
(See enclosure)
Motion by , seconded by , to approve the 2021-22 Within District Transfer and Option
Enrollment Capacity Standards. (See enclosure)
Motion by , seconded by , to approve of Personnel Actions: Resignation
Notification Incentive (RNI), Voluntary Separation Program (VSP), Resignation. (See enclosure)
Executive Session - Superintendent Evaluation. (See enclosure)
Reports

1. 2020-21 Open, Option, & Transfer Enrollment Report
2. Advanced Placement Report
3. International Baccalaureate Diploma Programme Report



4. Legislative Report
5. District Update

K. Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar
1.  Winter Break - No School Monday, December 21, 2020 — January 1, 2021
No School for Students - Teacher Work Day on Monday, January 4, 2021
Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 4, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 11, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC
No School for Students on January 18, 2021 for Martin Luther King Jr. Day — Staff Development Day
Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the DSAC

A

L. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

M. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion. Items may
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.












10



11



Millard Public Schools
December 7, 2020

12



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number
01 474114
474115
474116
474117
474125
474126
474129
474130
474132
474133
474135
474136
474137
474139
474140
474141
474142
474143
474144
474145
474146
474147
474148
474149
474151
474152
474153
474154

Dec 1, 2020

Check Date
11/12/2020
11/12/2020
11/12/2020
11/16/2020
11/19/2020
11/19/2020
11/19/2020
11/19/2020
11/19/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
108436
108436
131003
142482
133970
108436
064800
068801
139797
136271
010298
010383
010112
139412
139362
137954
137976
139802
143295
135692
102430
143247
143290
012989
142824
135852
137482
017877

Vendor Name
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC
DAILY RECORD
MINNESOTA LIFE INSURANCE CO
CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC
METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA
STATE OF NEBRASKA
US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
TROPHY GUY INC
ACCUCUT LLC
ACTION BATTERIES UNLIMITED INC
JOSEY THOMAS AARON
ERIN M AGUIRRE
AMANDA L AKSAMIT
CYNTHIA M ALBERICO
HALEY E ALLEN
JENNIFER L ALLEN
EASTERN NEBRASKA HUMAN SVCS AGENCY
AMERICAN COUNCIL ON THE TEACHING
AMI GROUP INC
PAUL P ANDERSON
MONICA A ANDERSON
APPLE COMPUTER INC
AVENUE SCHOLARS FOUNDATION
COLLEEN D BALLARD
KRISTINA A BAMESBERGER
CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR

Transaction Amount
$33,151.20
$544.83
$23.30
$6,000.00
$587.80
$7,587.37
$54,881.13
$6,477.75
$100.00
$41.15
$82.00
$409.10
$750.00
$48.85
$71.19
$212.00
$65.78
$213.55
$25.00
$315.00
$4,965.00
$62.56
$75.00
$533.40
$60,000.00
$1,497.00
$89.99
$117.13

13



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number
01 474155
474156
474157
474159
474160
474161
474162
474163
474164
474165
474166
474167
474168
474169
474170
474171
474172
474173
474174
474175
474176
474177
474178
474180
474182
474184
474186
474187

Dec 1, 2020

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
141712
138305
131634
135223
139783
141521
107540
139889
133636
132146
142454
134945
140887
134478
143307
130899
142728
141454
136274
139947
139890
140855
141510
142667
131158
136560
135648
136654

Vendor Name
BRIDGET R BARRY
MEAGAN L BASYE
MARGUERITE M BAY
AARON J BEARINGER
LYNNE H BECKER
ERIKA J BECKLEY
BRIAN F BEGLEY
DARLA G BELL
BELLEVUE WEST HIGH SCHOOL
BERGAN KDV LLC
LAURA C BESHALER
NOLAN J BEYER
RODNEY JOHNSON
TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH
TEJASWINI BOINPALLY
KIMBERLY M BOLAN
HEATHER E BOUCHER
SYDNEY J BOWCOTT
BYRON P BRAASCH
YESENIA BRAVO
DOUGLAS J BREITER
AMY E BREITER
CHRISTINE L BUKOWSKI
COMPASS GROUP INC
CURTIS R CASE
CAITLIN CEDFELDT
SUSAN M CHADWICK
NICOLE A CHAPMAN

Transaction Amount
$60.00
$37.89
$16.10
$17.71

$4,446.00
$105.97
$118.45
$92.63
$424.00
$14,000.00
$128.00
$120.50
$232.00
$111.56
$60.00
$159.33
$35.19
$159.95
$83.49
$99.76
$108.56
$84.81
$157.27
$210.16
$203.35
$120.00
$16.91
$133.39

14



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number
01 474188
474189
474190
474191
474192
474193
474194
474195
474196
474197
474198
474199
474200
474201
474202
474203
474204
474205
474206
474207
474208
474209
474210
474211
474212
474213
474214
474215

Dec 1, 2020

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
024445
143298
131135
141732
137013
025455
143001
143248
132443
131210
106893
137696
130900
131483
132671
131003
135569
138584
106713
136493
032800
032872
137331
139346
138933
132669
139349
135689

Vendor Name
MARK C CHAVEZ
ALISSA C CHRISTENSEN
PATRICIA A CLIFTON
RHIANNON COBB
NANCY S COLE
COLLEGE BOARD
BRANDON COLLINS
RANA R COREY
CORNERSTONES OF CARE
COUNCIL BLUFFS COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
WICHITA WATER CONDITIONING INC
DEBORAH S CURNYN
CHERYL L CUSTARD
JANET L DAHLGAARD
JEAN T DAIGLE
DAILY RECORD
CYNTHIA L DARK
DATA POWER TECHNOLOGY LLC
ANDREW S DEFREECE
ANNE DELUCA
DEMCO INC
DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY
BASTIAN DERICHS
LYNN M DETHLOFF
MICHAEL L DEUTSCH
DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC
TERRIN D DORATHY
SUSAN M DULANY

Transaction Amount
$117.42
$11.90
$54.17
$120.00
$74.64
$400.00
$60.00
$28.81
$2,600.00
$299.36
$43.55
$12.89
$209.59
$20.07
$150.19
$17.30
$158.87
$730.00
$12.31
$60.00
$280.14
$1,225.29
$38.01
$25.68
$256.00
$350.00
$21.28
$90.45

15



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number
01 474216
474217
474218
474219
474220
474221
474222
474223
474224
474225
474226
474227
474228
474229
474230
474231
474232
474233
474234
474235
474236
474237
474238
474239
474240
474241
474242
474243

Dec 1, 2020

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
135173
138426
052370
037525
133823
143296
038140
143304
141577
142385
142407
135113
137683
143301
141762
132862
137016
141922
130731
142378
141511
131636
136370
142132
140957
041146
141812
140494

Vendor Name
RYAN PATRICK DURHAM
KELLY D EALY
ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3
REBECCA S EHRHORN
SOLAIS LLC
ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.
ALEX ELFERING
ELITE PROFESSIONALS HOME CARE LLC
SHANNON KIEBLER
SAMANTHA L ENGEL
MOLLY B ERICKSON
KATHRYN A ETZELMILLER
EVANS CUSTOM APPAREL INC
HELEN M EVANS
SARAH FECH-BAUGHMAN
ANGELA L FERGUSON
MARIAN FEY
FIRST WIRELESS INC
FIS DATA SYSTEMS INC
JENNIFER M FITZKE
LAURIE A FITZPATRICK
FLEET US LLC
DANNY FLORES
KATHERINE FORD
KENNETH J FOSSEN
CINDY FRIESE
MATTHEW J GEERTS

Transaction Amount
$60.00
$88.61

$1,526.83
$247,159.00
$320.29
$100.00
$3,728.80
$120.00
$7,579.00
$3,000.00
$33.29
$34.52
$35.65
$522.50
$83.09
$60.00
$50.83
$21.45
$934.50
$220.00
$26.91
$99.00
$15,992.00
$150.00
$150.00
$750.00
$91.86
$1,014.89

16



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number | Check Date = Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount
01 474244 12/07/2020 106660 GLASSMASTERS INC $2,672.50
474245 12/07/2020 142924 GREATER OMAHA ATTENDANCE & LEARNING $1,200.00
474247 12/07/2020 044950 GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY $3,656.77
474248 12/07/2020 133885 GREENLIFE GARDENS INC $735.00
474249 12/07/2020 143306 AKITIKRISHNA GUNDA $60.00
474250 12/07/2020 138427 JEFF T GUSTAFSON $28.75
474251 12/07/2020 143311 CAMPBELL HAASCH $60.00
474252 12/07/2020 139818 ANGELA R HAASE $55.20
474253 12/07/2020 141526 JENNIFER J HALL $51.33
474254 12/07/2020 140575 WALTER R HAMILTON $60.00
474255 12/07/2020 056820 FIRST INSURANCE GROUP LLC $170,594.00
474256 12/07/2020 138844 SANDRA A HAVENS $15.01
474257 12/07/2020 140630 NICHOLAS K HAWKINS $85.00
474258 12/07/2020 140889 DEANNA L HAYES $33.64
474259 12/07/2020 048475 HEARTLAND FOUNDATION $27,195.00
474260 12/07/2020 109808 CHERYL L HEIMES $70.09
474261 12/07/2020 102842 HELGET GAS PRODUCTS INC $3.15
474262 12/07/2020 141513 MELISSA M HENNINGS $43.82
474263 12/07/2020 139305 JUSTIN A HIGGINS $440.86
474264 12/07/2020 048845 CAMILLE H HINZ $28.35
474265 12/07/2020 140246 THERESA | HOAG $5.00
474266 12/07/2020 137678 KRISTEN D HOLZER $342.70
474268 12/07/2020 142777 HOME DEPOT USA INC $61,712.05
474269 12/07/2020 142777 HOME DEPOT USA INC $491.08
474270 12/07/2020 142777 HOME DEPOT USA INC $139.98
474271 12/07/2020 106109 HORACE MANN LEAGUE OF THE USA $100.00
474272 12/07/2020 049450 HOTSY EQUIPMENT COMPANY $256.24
474273 12/07/2020 049650 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT PUB CO $62.89

Dec 1, 2020 5



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number
01 474274
474275
474276
474277
474280
474282
474283
474284
474285
474286
474287
474288
474289
474291
474292
474293
474294
474295
474297
474298
474299
474303
474304
474305
474306
474307
474309
474310

Dec 1, 2020

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
109836
141066
101533
139987
137426
130283
133397
140729
143010
131157
133037
142979
054487
135373
054640
143066
135205
142898
143302
132265
135050
140091
141977
141957
135814
141681
138549
135257

Vendor Name
AMY L HOULTON
LUCAS HOUSER
DIANE F HOWARD
HUGH O'BRIAN YOUTH LEADERSHIP
HUGHES MULCH PRODUCTS LLC
KARA L HUTTON
HY-VEE INC
J F AHERN CO
CHRISTOPOHER DANIEL JACKSON
CHRISTINE A JANOVEC-POEHLMAN
JENSEN TIRE & AUTO #15
KAILYNN JENSEN
ELIZABETH C JOHNSON
LINDA K JOHNSON
OLSON BY PRODUCTS INC
JOSEPH PETERSON
JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD
JUST FOR KIDS THERAPY INC
KANSAS ASSN SCHOOL PERSONNEL ADMIN
CATHERINE A KEISER
KEITH LUTZ HORIZON HIGH SCHOOL
KENT J KINGSTON
KELSEY K KORSHOJ
MELINDA S KRAUSE
KELLI K KRAUSE
EMILY C KURZ
JARED LANGEMEIER
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES INC

Transaction Amount
$67.45
$60.00
$41.46

$250.00
$2,295.00
$17.19
$166.88
$1,717.00
$75.00
$59.91
$5,209.69
$120.00
$38.87
$21.85
$340.00
$718.00
$761.20
$217.75
$140.00
$54.51
$1,200.00
$27.14
$105.91
$34.90
$411.47
$28.75
$225.00
$1,515.34

18



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number
01 474312
474313
474314
474315
474316
474317
474318
474319
474320
474322
474323
474324
474325
474326
474327
474328
474329
474330
474331
474332
474333
474335
474337
474338
474339
474340
474341
474342

Dec 1, 2020

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
140464
143305
140077
132518
133643
131397
108106
143268
137281
141614
108052
138341
142889
140110
137014
140034
143303
141523
064260
139979
064600
133403
139339
141664
142409
107560
065438
065410

Vendor Name
LEARNING FORWARD NEBRASKA
MEGHAN E LENZI
TIMOTHY J LEUSCHEN
LINCOLN SOUTHWEST HIGH SCHOOL
JODY C LINDQUIST
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC
LEANNA MACDONALD
DEBORAH A MACKEY
DMG INC
SARAH MAUL
MAX | WALKER UNIFORM & APPAREL
MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES HOLDINGS
SHANNON L MCGOWEN
MCGRAW-HILL EDUCATION INC
RYE L MCINTOSH
AMY B MCIVER
EMILY MCKENNA
KELLI M MCWILLIAMS
MECHANICAL SALES INC.
MENARDS INC
METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK
SPORTS FACILITY MAINTENANCE LLC
MIDWEST ALARM SERVICES
LAUREN R MILBOURN
MILLARD METAL SERVICES INC.
MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL
MILLARD PUB SCHL ADMIN ACTIVITY FND

Transaction Amount
$25.00
$100.98
$8.97
$240.00
$9.32
$5.68
$3,363.00
$24.44
$924.75
$60.00
$620.15
$28,742.00
$22.66
$2,175.45
$136.22
$273.98
$80.00
$14.09
$1,366.00
$208.69
$8,594.00
$14,502.51
$775.00
$463.68
$81.77
$79.00
$11,758.33
$220.00

19



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number | Check Date = Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount
01 474343 12/07/2020 131328 MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY $1,325.73
474344 12/07/2020 065810 MIRACLE RECREATION EQUIPMENT CO $3,770.36
474345 12/07/2020 141026 JASON MITERA $31.41
474346 12/07/2020 142525 MICHAEL J MONTEMARANO $37.03
474347 12/07/2020 140990 LAURA M MORRIS $288.81
474350 12/07/2020 067000 NASCO $327.28
474351 12/07/2020 132854 NATIONAL SAFETY COUNCIL $85.00
474352 12/07/2020 099928 NATIONAL SPEECH & DEBATE ASSN/NFL $120.00
474353 12/07/2020 142837 TONYA M NAUSLAR $197.91
474354 12/07/2020 135490 NEBRASKA ASSN SCHOOL PERSONNEL ADMN $25.00
474355 12/07/2020 068343 NEBRASKA ASSN OF SCHOOL BOARDS $1,791.00
474356 12/07/2020 136954 NEBRASKA CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CTR $50.00
474357 12/07/2020 068445 NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC $1,401.25
474358 12/07/2020 142414 NEBRASKA SALT & GRAIN CO $1,777.55
474359 12/07/2020 138808 NEBRASKA SECRETARY OF STATE:NOTARY $30.00
474360 12/07/2020 138808 NEBRASKA SECRETARY OF STATE:NOTARY $30.00
474361 12/07/2020 143283 MARK S NEGRETE $142.50
474362 12/07/2020 143282 NICOLE B NELSON $35.54
474363 12/07/2020 107732 BRIAN L NELSON $135.00
474364 12/07/2020 143052 WILLIAM ROBERT NERVIG IV $60.00
474365 12/07/2020 142353 ASHLEY B NODGAARD $46.35
474366 12/07/2020 101008 NORFOLK HIGH SCHOOL $310.00
474367 12/07/2020 100013 OFFICE DEPOT 84133510 $1,104.40
474368 12/07/2020 070245 RICHELIEU AMERICA LTD $881.18
474369 12/07/2020 070800 OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT $358,663.74
474370 12/07/2020 071040 OMAHA WINNELSON COMPANY $319.05
474371 12/07/2020 071050 LEE BHM CORPORATION $1,382.50
474372 12/07/2020 137824 OMBUDSMAN EDUCATIONAL SVCS LTD $118,170.00

Dec 1, 2020 8



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number
01 474373
474374
474375
474376
474377
474378
474379
474380
474381
474382
474383
474385
474386
474388
474389
474390
474391
474392
474393
474394
474395
474396
474397
474398
474399
474400
474404
474405

Dec 1, 2020

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
140402
133850
142865
107193
142290
142869
134428
071566
137015
132006
131610
140516
133390
138397
073040
131835
134598
133441
109810
142480
137478
135690
078760
142091
109192
135484
079310
143082

Vendor Name
OMNI FINANCIAL GROUP INC
ONE SOURCE
JESSE ORSI
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
OVERDRIVE INC
MATTHEW A OWEN
ELIZABETH A PACHTA
PAPILLION-LAVISTA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
GEORGE M PARKER
ANDREA L PARSONS
PATRICIA D BUFFUM
JOSEPH W PETITO
HEATHER C PHIPPS
PICKATIME
PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC
PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP
PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC
MICHELLE R RAMIG
BETHANY B RAY
JOSHUA D RAYMOND
REALLY GREAT READING LLC
DEIDRE M REEH
REGAL AWARDS INC
KWABENA S REID
KIMBERLI R RICE
KRISTI L RICHLING
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER
HANNAH RODRICKS

Transaction Amount
$1,000.00
$2,141.00

$210.00
$2,444.01
$1,553.81
$360.00
$273.36
$770.00
$25.53
$121.21
$180.00
$59.92
$113.51
$460.50
$5,000.00
$37,390.00
$1,878.27
$45.00
$137.14
$89.70
$290.08
$55.26
$12.00
($50.00)
$105.28
$75.15
$715.00
$60.00

21



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number | Check Date = Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount
01 474406 12/07/2020 134882 LINDA A ROHMILLER $16.45
474408 12/07/2020 141972 ALLISON RUTHERFORD $118.00
474409 12/07/2020 081725 KIMBERLEY K SAUM-MILLS $57.67
474410 12/07/2020 138484 CINDY M SCHARFF $1,517.95
474412 12/07/2020 135433 MONTE G SCHEEF $59.80
474415 12/07/2020 137012 SHELLEY L SCHMITZ $34.04
474418 12/07/2020 137416 NICHOLE E SCHWAB $75.43
474420 12/07/2020 082905 KIMBERLY A SECORA $3.11
474421 12/07/2020 108161 STAN J SEGAL $114.31
474422 12/07/2020 140383 SENTRY INSURANCE, A MUTUAL COMPANY $96,742.32
474423 12/07/2020 141686 JOSHUA SHAFFER $120.00
474424 12/07/2020 109800 AMY L SHATTUCK $146.06
474426 12/07/2020 143104 SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP $2,533.44
474427 12/07/2020 142150 PAYTON ALEXANDRA SHUDAK $75.00
474428 12/07/2020 143308 ELIANA G SIEBE-WALLES $120.00
474429 12/07/2020 131887 SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC. $883.00
474430 12/07/2020 132590 SILVERSTONE GROUP INC $5,489.00
474431 12/07/2020 143310 PALAK SINGH $60.00
474433 12/07/2020 143266 NATHAN M SMITH $136.33
474434 12/07/2020 140891 MARCIA L SMITH $203.68
474435 12/07/2020 132003 SHELLY A SMITH $149.00
474436 12/07/2020 083950 SOCIAL STUDIES SCHOOL SERVICE $44.79
474437 12/07/2020 101476 SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES $110,744.16
474438 12/07/2020 143135 SOLARWINDS ITSM US INC $4,119.85
474440 12/07/2020 109843 SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS CO $3,839.70
474441 12/07/2020 136316 EVA M STALLING $6.73
474442 12/07/2020 133321 DON S STEDMAN $253.00
474443 12/07/2020 142102 STERLING COMPUTERS CORPORATION $4,367.38

Dec 1, 2020 10



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number | Check Date = Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount
01 474444 12/07/2020 143297 JENNIFER L STOLP $25.00
474445 12/07/2020 139843 STUDENT TRANSPORATION NEBRASKA INC $394,301.41
474448 12/07/2020 143309 PRANAV TADIKONDA $60.00
474450 12/07/2020 135006 STEVE D THRONE $444.25
474451 12/07/2020 142020 TAYLOR TOKOS $60.00
474452 12/07/2020 143077 JACK WILLIAM TOMSU $150.00
474453 12/07/2020 132421 TRAINERS WAREHOUSE $82.61
474454 12/07/2020 141772 TRED-MARK FINANCIAL INC $500.00
474455 12/07/2020 131997 TRI W-G INCORPORATED $8,811.00
474456 12/07/2020 107719 KIMBERLY P TRISLER $85.62
474457 12/07/2020 106493 TRITZ PLUMBING, INC. $1,573.80
474458 12/07/2020 141711 COURTNEY C TSCHUDIN $108.54
474459 12/07/2020 142309 UNANIMOUS INC $2,050.00
474460 12/07/2020 090242 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $197.60
474461 12/07/2020 139511 UNITED REFRIGERATION INC $892.66
474462 12/07/2020 134849 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AMERICA) INC $92.00
474463 12/07/2020 140704 URBAN SUPERINTENDENTS ASSN AMERICA $400.00
474464 12/07/2020 138046 AUTO LUBE INC $653.12
474465 12/07/2020 135863 RUDOLPH A VLCEK I $472.50
474466 12/07/2020 142782 ELIZABETH E WALKER $149.00
474467 12/07/2020 143249 ELIZABETH A WALLACE $38.35
474468 12/07/2020 131112 LINDA M WALTERS $27.08
474469 12/07/2020 136617 ANTHONY R WARD $5,440.00
474470 12/07/2020 134779 ROBERT K WARD $70.00
474471 12/07/2020 141464 ANTHONY J WEERS $70.55
474472 12/07/2020 140929 ERIC C WELTE $391.92
474473 12/07/2020 139185 WEST OMAHA WINSUPPLY CO $59.53
474474 12/07/2020 107563 CAROL M WEST $342.83

Dec 1, 2020 1"



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number

01 474475
474476
474478
474479
474481
474482
474483
474484
E102829
E102830
E102831
E102832
E102833
E102835
E102836
E102837
E102838
E102839
E102840
E102841
E102842
E102843
E102844
E102845
E102846
E102847
E102848
E102849

Dec 1, 2020

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
094245
133061
143300
096200
138422
137020
142514
136855
140411
106436
102727
138054
139474
019111
019559
134129
024260
090270
135082
136574
026057
109063
033473
073231
036654
038023
040537
106956

Vendor Name
WESTLAKE ACE HARDWARE INC
JACKIE L WHISENHUNT
WOODHOUSE LINCOLN MERCURY INC
YOUNG & WHITE
JAMIE S ZARLINGO
CHAD R ZIMMERMAN
KRISTA J ZIPP
PAUL R ZOHLEN
SCOMAC INC
AQUA-CHEM INC
B & H PHOTO
BAXTER FORD INC
SMA ENTERPRISES INC
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC
BRAINPOP LLC
CENTER TROPHY COMPANY
UNITED DISTRIBUTORS INC
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC
CONTROL DEPOT INC
CONTROL MASTERS INC
CRISIS PREVENTION INSTITUTE INC
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC
DXP ENTERPRISES INC
ECOLAB INC
EGAN SUPPLY COMPANY
WOLSELEY INVESTMENTS INC
FERRELLGAS

12

Transaction Amount
$315.84
$244.38

$60.91
$25,346.50
$60.00
$501.40
$35.28
$51.75
$1,234.30
$992.04
$1,147.08
$19.95
$400.00
$18,747.08
$449.98
$1,475.00
$13.00
$875.70
$1,092.00
$524.70
$7,498.19
$1,090.00
$2,074.32
$53.29
$234.92
$1,946.36
$240.81
$14.95

24



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number
01 E102850
E102851
E102852
E102853
E102854
E102855
E102857
E102858
E102859
E102860
E102861
E102862
E102863
E102864
E102865
E102866
E102867
E102868
E102869
E102870
E102871
E102872
E102874
E102875
E102876
E102877
E102879
E102880

Dec 1, 2020

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
133919
041100
140791
044891
035610
048786
100928
130994
054630
135156
059470
137800
137947
064980
066010
063150
130548
068334
134725
071190
071850
072760
073840
137779
078420
100642
079450
082100

Vendor Name
FILTER SHOP INC
FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC
FRONTLINE PRIVATE SECURITY LLC
THE PROPHET CORPORATION
HAND2MIND INC
HILLYARD INC
J W PEPPER & SON INC.
JOHNSON CONTROLS INC
JOHNSTONE SUPPLY
LAWSON PRODUCTS INC
LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC
MANAGEBAC INC
MECHANICAL SALES PARTS INC
MIDWEST SOUND & LIGHTING INC
MONEY HANDLING MACHINES, INC.
MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO
NCS PEARSON INC
NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC
OMAHA CASING CO INC
OVERHEAD DOOR COMPANY OMAHA
PAXTON/PATTERSON LLC
PITSCO INC
PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT RESOURCE
JARDINE QUALITY IRRIGATION INC
RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.
REALLY GOOD STUFF LLC
ROTARY CLUB OF MILLARD-OMAHA
SCHOLASTIC INC

13

Transaction Amount
$12,846.24
$2,071.06
$1,462.50
$713.58
$45.54
$2,720.36
$385.47
$690.20
$885.37
$341.52
$163.00
$5,886.72
$1,047.95
$55.50
$1,410.00
$198.86
$1,840.85
$4,773.44
$840.00
$123.00
$25.68
$750.00
$727.92
$353.98
$1,488.00
$371.06
$200.00
$1,255.66

25



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number
01 E102881
E102883
E102884
E102885
E102886
E102887
E102888
E102889
E102891
E102892
E102893
E102894
E102895
E102896

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
082350
083188
084093
137481
071025
138773
090214
140314
138759
139738
093765
137878
100578
109852

Vendor Name Transaction Amount
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC $256.15
SHIFFLER EQUIPMENT SALES, INC. $183.22
SOUTHWEST STRINGS $179.94
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL INC $28.49
OMAHA TRUCK CENTER INC $1,314.52
ULINE INC $703.75
UNITED ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO INC $39.89
VARI SALES CORPORATION $355.50
VIA INC $432.20
WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ILLINOIS INC $17,649.20
WATER ENGINEERING, INC. $1,650.00
WHITE WOLF WEB PRINTERS INC $845.51
WT COX SUBSCRIPTIONS INC $5,152.34
WURTH BAER SUPPLY CO $1,415.28

01 - Total $2,191,138.42

02 26752
26753
26754
26755
26756
26757
26758
26759
26760
E30041

12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

010061
106893
140871
139791
142660
136279
100013
139832
141673
010670

BULLER FIXTURE COMPANY $3,605.30
WICHITA WATER CONDITIONING INC $13.00
DAVID C WOOD $2,530.20
GREGORY M EADES $19.55
MIDWEST EQUIP/ESPRESSO SPECIALIST $106.00
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT $926.50
OFFICE DEPOT 84133510 $855.94
PAMELA S OSTERMAN $31.40
VAN METER INC $2,269.80
GOODWIN TUCKER GROUP $229.35

02 - Total $10,587.04

06 474213
474244

Dec 1, 2020

12/07/2020
12/07/2020

132669
106660

DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC $630.00
GLASSMASTERS INC $2,900.00

14

26



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number

06 474308
474349
474443
E102828
E102876

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
11/12/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
058775
142914
142102
140156
078420

Vendor Name Transaction Amount
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC $966.02
MARATHON REPROGRAPHICS INC $70.00
STERLING COMPUTERS CORPORATION $3,067.80
CAMBIUM DATA INC $5,067.06
RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC. $12,760.00

06 - Total $25,460.88

07 474134
474158
474203
474301
474308
474348
474349
474391
474413
474439
E102875

12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

010040
133480
131003
143145
058775
134532
142914
134598
081880
136932
137779

A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC $351.25
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY $67,092.00
DAILY RECORD $159.90
KILDOW CONSTRUCTION INC $13,788.00
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC $1,200.00
MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC $119,200.00
MARATHON REPROGRAPHICS INC $2,729.00
PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC $265.39
SCHEMMER ASSOCIATES INC $2,336.70
SPECIALIZED AIR/HYDRONIC BALANCING $5,800.00
JARDINE QUALITY IRRIGATION INC $2,974.51

07 - Total $215,896.75

11 474143
474150
474179
474185
474196
474281
474302
474321
474336
474362

Dec 1, 2020

12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

139802
142861
137274
101104
132443
134807
138056
142398
143312
143282

JENNIFER L ALLEN $39.96
SAMANTHA | AULNER $19.88
EILEEN CABRERA $8.61
CENTRAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE $3,000.00
CORNERSTONES OF CARE $2,500.00
MONICA A HUTFLES $1,105.75
COLLEEN M KILLEEN $30.00
RACHEL A MATHIS $26.76
ASHLEY L MEYER $65.54
NICOLE B NELSON $22.18
15

27



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number | Check Date = Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount
11 474384 12/07/2020 132656 JANET L PERRONE $10.98
474387 12/07/2020 143101 JEREMY J PICK $42.48
474401 12/07/2020 139324 KELLY C RINEHART $1,620.45
474402 12/07/2020 140862 JONATHAN W RINGENBERG $1,562.95
474407 12/07/2020 142556 SOMMER R RUHLAND $1,105.75
474411 12/07/2020 139520 BLAISE J SCHEEF $2,552.75
474425 12/07/2020 143292 SHERRIE LOMBAARDO $135.00
474432 12/07/2020 139357 MATTHEW L SMITH $895.65
474447 12/07/2020 140914 SHANNON M SWANEY $2,560.00
474449 12/07/2020 141043 KIARA L TAYLOR $42.67
474477 12/07/2020 142888 TREVOR J WIEGERT $1,105.75
474480 12/07/2020 135890 YOUTH FRONTIERS INC $2,220.00
E102829 12/07/2020 140411 SCOMAC INC $366.40
E102856 12/07/2020 138560 IXL LEARNING INC $5,726.00
E102878 12/07/2020 139949 GRAPHIC TECHNOLOGIES INC $600.00

14 474124 11/19/2020 097000 AETNA LIFE INSURANCE CO $90,397.44
474138 12/07/2020 097000 AETNA LIFE INSURANCE CO $180,386.40
474419 12/07/2020 142167 SCRIP POINT $8,000.00

17 474149 12/07/2020 012989 APPLE COMPUTER INC $333.00
474158 12/07/2020 133480 BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY $1,917.50
474181 12/07/2020 134794 CARLEY CONSTRUCTION LLC $30,733.52
474183 12/07/2020 142324 CBJ CONSTRUCTION CO INC $19,060.00
474247 12/07/2020 044950 GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY $2,394.00
474296 12/07/2020 136678 K C PETERSEN CONSTRUCTION CO $8,100.00
474308 12/07/2020 058775 LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC $2,350.00
474343 12/07/2020 131328 MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY $5,948.00

Dec 1, 2020 16



Millard Public Schools Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for Dec 7, 2020

Fund = Check Number

17 474357
474416
474417
474443
474457
E102873
E102882
E102890

Check Date
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

Vendor Number
068445
142939
143204
142102
106493
102199
083175
138328

Vendor Name Transaction Amount
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC $308.00
MEREDITH E SCHNEIDER $48.01
SCHOOL'S IN LLC $12,080.84
STERLING COMPUTERS CORPORATION $13,697.00
TRITZ PLUMBING, INC. $288.00
PRIORITY FITNESS INC $551.98
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS $686.70
VEX ROBOTICS INC $7,974.76

17 - Total $106,471.31

50 474131
474290
474300
474311
474398
474403
474414
474446
E102835
E102844

11/19/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020
12/07/2020

140432
054492
138351
058800
142091
138312
081891
140521
019111
033473

STEPHEN TODD $5,000.00
JIM L JOHNSON $225.00
JOHN E KENNEDY $76.00
LANOHA NURSERIES INC $146.92
KWABENA S REID $100.00
PAIGE E ROBERTS $50.00
SCHMITT MUSIC CENTER $1,875.00
TONYA S STUTZMAN $24.57
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT $500.00
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC $80.32

50 - Total $8,077.81

99 474131
474469

11/19/2020
12/07/2020

140432
136617

STEPHEN TODD ($200.00)
ANTHONY R WARD ($217.60)

99 - Total ($417.60)

Overall - Total

Dec 1, 2020

$2,863,363.96

17

29



30



31



32



33






35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43






45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53






55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63






65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



7



78



79



80



81



82



83






85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



Agenda Item:

Meeting Date:

Background/
Description:

AGENDA SUMMARY
SHEET

Approval of Construction Manager at Risk Contracts for 2020 Bond
Projects

December 7, 2020

Following passage of the District’s bond election on May 12, 2020,

the District began the process for selecting a Construction Manager at Risk
(“CMR”). It is currently the intent to consider a CMR for the renovations of
Norris Elementary School, Cody Elementary School, Central Middle
School, and South High School. These four projects are abnormally
difficult due to the necessary phasing over multiple years of construction
and, therefore, require construction companies with experience and
expertise in these types of projects in a school building setting.

Pursuant to State Law, the District began by pre-qualifying potential CMR
firms based on their experience and expertise. The District received nine
responses and pre-qualified eight companies to receive the RFP for the four
projects listed above. The list of pre-qualified firms was as follows:

(1) Boyd Jones Construction

(2) Charles Vrana & Son Construction Company
(3) Lueder Construction

(4) Lund Ross Constructors

(5) McCarthy Building Companies

(6) MCL Construction

(7) Sampson Construction

(8) The Weitz Company

Following pre-qualification of the responding firms, the District sent out
two RFPs, one for Norris Elementary School and one for Central Middle
School to the pre-qualified firms, with the intent of beginning work on those
projects in the summer of 2021. The following four firms responded to both
RFPs.

(1) Lueder Construction
(2) MCL Construction
(3) Sampson Construction
(4) Weitz Company

All four firms were interviewed by the District selection committees for
both projects.

118



Selection Committee Members for evaluating the Norris Elementary School
CMR proposals was: Colleen Ballard, John Brennan, Knut Haasch, Jeremy
Madson, Steve Mainelli, Chad Meisgeier, Linda Poole, Duncan Young, and
Tom Zuk.

Selection Committee Members for evaluating the Central Middle School
CMR proposals was: John Brennan, Pat Carson, Knut Haasch, Stacy Jolley,
Michelle Klug, Jeremy Madson, Steve Mainelli, Chad Meisgeier, and
Duncan Young.

Responses to the Request for Proposals were reviewed based on the factors
set forth under state law. The scoring matrix contained seven categories and
was on a scale of 7 to 150 possible points.

Results for the Norris Elementary School review of proposals and
interviews were averaged over the nine committee members with the
following results:

(1) The Weitz Company — 133 points
(2) Sampson Construction — 125 points
(3) MCL Construction — 123 points

(4) Lueder Construction — 107 points

Results for the Central Middle School review of proposals and interviews
were averaged over the nine committee members with the following results:

(1) The Weitz Company — 132 points
(2) MCL Construction — 129 points

(3) Sampson Construction — 122 points
(4) Lueder Construction — 111 points

Pursuant to state law, the review of the responses to the requests for
proposals and the interviews was based on the quality and not based on
price. Following tabulation of the selection committee proposal / interview
results, Steve Mainelli, with assistance from the District’s projects team,
compiled the price proposals of the four finalists. Chad Meisgeier and John
Brennan initiated negotiations with the first place CMR, The Weitz
Company. Following negotiations with The Weitz Company, the
administration recommends The Weitz Company be awarded the CMR
contract for Norris Elementary School and Central Middle School.

Costs from the four companies are summarized below:

119

NORRIS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

Firm: Pre-Construction Fee Constructflon Fee (% of
construction cost)

Weitz Company $20,000 3.90%

Sampson Construct. $35,000 4.00%

MCL Construction $10,000* 3.25%

Lueder Construction $10,000 2.50%




120

CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL
Firm: Pre-Construction Fee Construct'lon Fee (% of
construction cost)
Weitz Company $25,000 3.60%
MCL Construction $10,000* 2.90%
Sampson Construct. $25,000 3.85%
Lueder Construction $15,000 2.00%

* MCL was willing to waive the pre-construction fee upon completion of the project.

In evaluating costs, the team also looked at probable costs that each CMR
may add to the Guaranteed Maximum Price for expenses not included in the
construction fee. As a part of the finalizing negotiations, Weitz agreed that
all costs for their services (including pre-construction, construction fee, and
all other expenses) will not exceed a total of $514,284 for Norris
Elementary School and $1,135,333 for Central Middle School (assuming no
changes in scope of work, budget, or timeframes). The team also
considered other factors such as the additional staffing proposed by Weitz
compared to the other vendors and the potential savings that Weitz may
provide in inflationary costs by proposing a schedule that concludes both
projects one year faster than the other companies.

Action Desired: It is recommended that: (1) the District’s Construction Manager at Risk

contract for the Norris Elementary School 2020 bond project and the Central
Middle School 2020 bond project be awarded to The Weitz Company
pending final negotiations; and (2) that the Chief Financial Officer be
authorized and directed to negotiate and execute contracts with The Weitz
Company related to said projects; and (3) in the event that negotiations with
Weitz for a final contract are not concluded in a manner satisfactory to the
District, the Chief Financial Officer is authorized to begin negotiations with
the second place company and to bring back an alternate recommendation to

the Board of Education.
Policy /
Strategic Plan N/A
Reference:

Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:



121

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Approval of Schematic Design for Norris Elementary School

Meeting Date: December 7, 2020

Background/ The progressive steps for construction projects are generally as follows:
Description:
1. Schematic Design (SD) * Board Meeting Presentation
- “50 thousand feet view” — initial design and cost estimates
2. Design Development (DD)
- “10 thousand feet view” — refined design and cost estimates
3. Construction Documents (CD) *Board Meeting Presentation
- Final design and cost estimates for contractors to bid the project.
4. Bidding/Awarding of Contract (BA) * Board Meeting Presentation
- The receipt of bids and award of the construction contract.
5. Contract Administration (CA)
- Supervision and documentation of the construction project.

Attached is the Schematic Design and initial cost estimates for the Norris
Elementary School project. Norris Elementary is one of the renovation projects
budgeted in the 2020 bond.

The budget construction cost during the bond preparation process was $5,208,089.
The Schematic Design Estimate is $4,884,919.

Holland Basham Architects will be present to answer any questions.

Action Desired: It is recommended that the schematic design for the Norris Elementary School
project be approved as submitted.

Policy /

Strategic Plan N/A

Reference:

Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:



DIVISION

10

11

12

13

14

21

22

23

26

27

31

32

MPS: Norris Elementary School
SD PROBABLE COST ESTIMATE
11/23/2020
DESCRIPTION

GENERAL CONDITIONS

Existing Conditions

CONCRETE

MASONRY

METALS

WOOD PLASTICS & COMPOSITES

THERMAL / MOISTURE PROTECTION

DOORS & WINDOWS

FINISHES

SPECIALTIES

EQUIPMENT

FURNISHINGS

SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

CONVEYING SYSTEMS

FIRE SUPPRESSION

PLUMBING

HEATING VENTILATING & AIR CONDITIONING
ELECTRICAL

SPECIAL SYSTEMS

EARTHWORK

EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS

TOTAL

COST

484,091

135,000

50,200

145,165

20,000

57,200

60,642

246,300

312,321

42,000

200,000

135,000

184,000

1,920,000

803,000

75,000

15,000

4,884,919

122



123

NEW EGRESS
SIDEWALK ;
.

GEOTHERMAL
WELL FIELD NEW DUMPSTER
SCREEN WALL
NEW EGRESS
SIDEWALK

Issue Date:11/23/20

Project Number: 20107 MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY SITE PLAN

FILE LOCATION: C:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central_R19_nhittM62F2.rvt PLOTTED: 11/21/2020 11:20:52 AM



5TH GRADE
CLASSROOM

INTERMEDIATE
MONTESSORI
CLASSROOM

IM CLOSET

FINISH LEGEND

HALLWAY HALLWAY
NEW CARPET
STH GRADE
CLASSROOM INTERMEDIATE
HALLWAY % HALLWAY
NEW VCT
NEW WALL/DOOR AT NEW WALL/DOOR AT
I( REMOVED OPERABLE I( REMOVED OPERABLE
PARTITION PARTITION
NEW CERAMIC TILE
)
GLASSROON GLASSROON NEW CASEWORK
——
COUNSELOR

WALK-OFF MAT

(311)

INT'E-ﬁON—. - RESOURCE

r = EXISTING CONCRETE

EXISTING
MURAL EXISTING TERRAZZO
s EXISTING SHEET RUBBER
NEW ACOUSTICAL WALL PANELS
=S srosace NEW INTERIOR / EXTERIOR WALL
CUSTODIAN (12)

&) NEW ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WINDOW SYSTEM

TOILET TOILET
2ND GRADE NEW DOOR

O woRKRoOM
EXISTING WALL

GYM/CAFETERIA

RESOURCE
ROOM SCHOOL 2ND. CUB DEN/
PM CLOSET HALLWAY HALLWAY HALLWAY ELL OFFICE  HALL. PSYCH. HALLWAY HALLWAY  CLOSET R ';%/’gl\f
(211) (212) (215) (222) (225)
CORRIDOR HALLWAY
HALLWAY (220 SCOPE ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN THIS DRAWING:
-
NEW WALL/DOOR AT NEW WALL/DOOR AT
REMOVED OPERABLE REMOVED OPERABLE
PARTITION BOVS GIRLS PARTITION
PRIMARY PRIMARY PRIMARY (918) (219) 3RD GRADE 3RD GRADE 2ND GRADE
% % MONTESSORI CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM
CLASORVOM oRb GRADE CLASSROOM . . .
CLASSROOM .
CUST.
y
STORAGE
FREEZER MECHANICAL
STORAGE
(16) (13)
STORAGE 2034
HALLWAY
CUST. .-17
> EXISTING KITCHEN
PRE-PRIMARY PRE-PRIMARY KINDERGARTEN KINDERGARTEN 1ST GRADE 1ST GRADE MURAL
MONTESSORI MONTESSORI CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM
CLASSROOM CLASSROOM — —
GIRLS BOYS E:%IE)ENT PRESCHOOL
NEW WALL/DOOR AT (118) NEW WALL/DOOR AT o e Ul
REMOVED OPERABLE REMOVED OPERABLE @
PARTITION PARTITION RESTROOM
?
TOILET
@ RESTROOM
HALLWAY y
HALLWAY
HALLWAY RESTROOM
le,(l;_SNIIET HALLWAY HALLWAY HALLWAY INTEII\?A\/?EHTION HALL SPEECH READING 15T
(109) (111) s / SPED — PATH. / INTERVENTION ~ HALLWAY Sl ERi 2 AL BT C"1OZS7ET TOILET
© | o Gy W e T @ (=) w) |
— N 1 ~ . STAFF
HEALTH CONFERENGE) LOUNGE
____________________ PRINCIPAL " ADMIN
INTERN
OFFICE

NEW SECURE )
MAIN ENTRY \

DEFINE SCHOOL
PRIDE "FIRST 50"

ROOF LINE
N

OVERALL FLOOR PLAN

Issue Date:11/23/20
Project Number: 20107

MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY

PLOTTED: 11/19/2020 12:25:26 PM

FILE LOCATION: C:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central R19 nhittM62F2.rvt



125

EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION

SEE FOLLOWING SHEET FOR
ENLARGED ELEVATION AND MAIN ENTRY
WALL SECTION | | |
I_ —I NEW —==—— EXISTING EXISTING —=—=—- NEW NEW —=—— EXISTING
l l | | |
s e ST s #ommmane : l S s e . L . l
T C T e e e e AT TR AG cSocossr  SSEScte=se= it BTN AT e o T P T o T P e T T T T e P e e T O e e = :‘;‘;:;:;‘ﬁ‘\\:\\\:\‘\:\h:\hi‘MM:\‘:\Mﬁ‘ Him‘m‘{‘m‘miﬁﬂM‘Miw3§3§:3:3¢
=& 1 11111118 §F |
e | | b s == = =

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
wwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwww
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

*EXPLORING THE OPTION TO USE DIFFERENT
BRICK COLORS AT THE CLASSROOM BAYS

NEW SOUTH ELEVATION

Issue Date:11/23/20

Project Number: 20107 MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY OVERALL ELEVATIONS

FILE LOCATION: C:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central_R19_nhittM62F2.rvt PLOTTED: 11/19/2020 11:58:24 AM



EXISTING ENLARGED CLASSROOM BAY

)

| | | | | | | 4

|
|
|
|
b
| | | | | | | | |
|
|
|
|

| | | | /4 | | |
RN

/ CMU FOUNDATION WALL

= S ) yis v - - —
a 4 - - E < P < Y Lo 5 4 E - u- 4o < 4
4 4 4 x B N N 4 4} VN - - a. - e T2 4 . N 4 -
AR SR R > ‘ . I 49 -8 ; ST - R AL T s N - oL e s T oAl BN o -7 . e : N - L g . a 4 . ; N T AN EARE - R “a 4 T LN ST 24, s e . g0 . . LY 4 49 g
R A N SN A R S A9 4a T, N PPN P A R P T I I IS I & ST, i -z N B D 2 A I “ - . P @ s ) < - e~ Lo oS ST T
. - N Mige o T e e T RS 4 A TaT . e o 0 P AN N ST - . <4 B P T N NN > DRI S A L g C S It = a7 da - o - ‘ L S B Y R AN . P « - a ™ L . < T’ SIS .
- B A S a5, R LA oI s Te e g T ST T = S NN - SR o - R D A A N S St ey e e o e T L a aalat L e A A A
Sag S, T A B A R ca S e, i e LD . e 4 s sal . .- . R S DR AN : o AL N T s N I .- . -
. 3 - . C e oL . 4 . e cal .- . Y- 7T aa ) R R Ca . -t . IR 4 . - . 4 B < - - N N N oo a . - 24 1. . . S oo N - . 4 / RN R JRN N C Y a4 E . SN . . o 4. s T 0 - ) - . -
N a7 B - N " e 2 LA o < a - o - Soar Tyt s s e T N S N . e PR o 2o . <4 - v 4 4% e . N - b R N R oA, A Tyt . . R RN N a a P R N P N sa - N ~a a2, T PR - . .4t R [ A R ’
. B _ PR . . s - R oA . 5 N N - PR R ; B _ - e LT L T P _ -7 N ‘ .24 s N - < IR B .~ oA 3 a4, - .4 - S - oL e A 4e A S NI N 9 a4 g . . R . PR - , a S . L oe L2 S - -~ N R S
LI S “ _ A - 4 N I - E 4 L N 4 <4 L, s N - 4 ~ L - C B ~ A g T L, N N SR I ~ S < L0 4 4 s < P S > <A Ao o9 - N - _ _ N S R S S ST ~ S LT P a4 AT N - & AR = AL N < 4 -
) [ ) ey [ e e sy e e e e e e ey e e ) ey e e e e ) sy e e e ey e ) ey ey ) sy e e s e ) ey e e ey e e ) e e ey e e ) sy e e ) ey e ) e ey e ) sy ey e ) e ) ey ey e e ey ey [ 1 1

M= A === === NN NN NN == === === === S S === === N TN NN = TR

TYP. ENLARGED CLASSROOM BAY B 1 e e e e e e s e e e e o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e [ [ B

NN
4 - a

Issue Date:11/23/20
Project Number: 20107

MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY

CASE STUDY IMAGE - DARK BRONZE FRAMES

(2) STEPPED RUNNING
BOND COURSES

SOLIDER COURSE ABOVE
ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

NEW DARK BRONZE
COPING TO MATCH
ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

(3) BRICK REVEALS

%

126

PAINT EXISTING ALUMINUM
COPING AND SOFFIT

STEPPED RUNNING BOND
COURSES AT END GABLES

SOLIDER COURSE

WALL BEYOND

ALUMINUM WINDOW

PRECAST SILL

NEW FACE BRICK

FINISHED GRADE

RECESSED GUTTER

PRECAST SILL

DARK BRONZE ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

NEW CONCRETE FOOTING

”H\ﬁi\\\”“é”

4
o~
4 :
. \«

WALL SECTION

ENLARGED ELEVATIONS

FILE LOCATION: C:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central_R19_nhittM62F2.rvt PLOTTED: 11/19/2020 11:58:25 AM

EXISTING FOUNDATION WALL

NEW FOUNDATION WALL
AND FOOTING



127

RRIS ELEMEN LAR

2-/-:.\:1". 2
| ard

PUBLIC SCHOOLS

AR ) e JI"‘_'::\'.-'.-_'." el O o e . _—
= N R A B RS e - iy

Slob o SR R AT
= ’ » -. §L i I il ¥ okl f .

Issue Date:11/23/20
Project Number: 20107 MPS - NORRIS ELEMENTARY 3D VIEW AT MAIN ENTRY

FILE LOCATION: C:\Users\nhitt\Documents\Revit\20107_MPS - Norris Elementary_Arch_CD_Central_R19_nhittM62F2.rvt PLOTTED: 11/24/2020 12:03:42 PM


nhitt
Snapshot


128

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Approval of Schematic Design for North Middle School

Meeting Date: December 7, 2020

Background/ The progressive steps for construction projects are generally as follows:
Description:
1. Schematic Design (SD) * Board Meeting Presentation
- “50 thousand feet view” — initial design and cost estimates
2. Design Development (DD)
- “10 thousand feet view” — refined design and cost estimates
3. Construction Documents (CD) *Board Meeting Presentation
- Final design and cost estimates for contractors to bid the project.
4. Bidding/Awarding of Contract (BA) * Board Meeting Presentation
- The receipt of bids and award of the construction contract.
5. Contract Administration (CA)
- Supervision and documentation of the construction project.

Attached is the Schematic Design and initial cost estimates for the North Middle
School project. North Middle School is one of the renovation projects budgeted in
the 2020 bond.

The budget construction cost during the bond preparation process was $2,045,485
plus improvements in the learning commons area in the amount of $174,000 for a

total of $2,219,485. The Schematic Design Estimate is $2,073,266.

BCDM Architects will be present to answer any questions.

Action Desired: It is recommended that the schematic design for the North Middle School
project be approved as submitted.

Policy /

Strategic Plan N/A

Reference:

Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:



FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

AR

MPS NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

BCOM NO. 302/-18

EEEN ' =EE

REFINISH WOOD DOORS AND PAINT HM FRAME

PAINT HM DOORS AND HM FRAME

DEMO TACK WALL COVERING, REPLACE WITH NEW GYP & PAINT

NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS

PAINT WALLS

PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW EXTERIOR WINDOW SHADE
PAINT HM WINDOW FRAME

RESURFACING OPERABLE PARTITIONS

DEMO WALL TILE AND REPLACE WITH NEW PORCELAIN TILE

DEMO WALL

NEW WALL

NEW PORCELAIN TILE

NEW WALK-OFF CARPET

PAINTED CONCRETE

REPLACE VCT

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

REFINISH EPOXY COUNTERTOP

NEW TOILET PARTITIONS AND ACCESSORIES

REPLACED LOCKERS

REPLACE EXISTING CASEWORK

50 FIRST FEET REMODEL

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

MEDIA CENTER UPDATES

WORK ROOM REVISIONS

SERVING LINE UPGRADES

ADDITIONAL SCOPE NOT SHOWN ON PLAN:

- REPLACE FIRE ALARM SYSTEM - ENTIRE BUILDING

NOVEMBER 23, 2020

SCIENCE SCIENCE CLASSROOM
01 21
B CLASSROOM
17
= = . . BSOSO SSSes

CLASSROOM

SCIENCE SCIENCE _
03 s 07 CLASSROOM

18

SCIENCE
13

SCIENCE CLASSROOM
19

KX XXX X]
B

KK

e%%%

IITE
0. 0.0,
S8

<
@

X XXX
BB

LRSS

he2e%%

CLASSROOM
136

ST
Le%e%%

P

3535
S5
pe%e

X
&5
%

%
<

X
v

é??

SEL
G

X2
e
K
1%
I5

%
&
o2

N
5

e

%

%5
24

5
RS
bo%

v’v
Pale

3l

5
B
e

|

9
%,

R T
RN P

Vv
>
e

%
%
XX

XX
KRS

5
3RS
o

%

K X
R

T
A

K>
2058

2

%

vive
y.?j

7

IF
Ik

NE
(>
(&

B
2ol

4

25

132

WOOD SHOP
106*

CORR.
109

SSRGS G588
i&&ﬁ@%&:,4&pqg ’ i
% RSEEEELIEELIEIIEE] kS
‘ ’;004
= o 020
5 o ‘ CLASSROOM CLASSROOM
‘ | 500900, KRN
030, 2050202 15 141 151

A S o

o 55 )
CLASSROOM 9,8 FCS CLASSROOM [
ava o [al ] 2 & H & '

93
olod

S
S50

K
RKKS

VA

162 161

<
90,99

V’V
XX

SRKK

CERLHRLHRLAIRKS

IS
RL

X0

TR
L

SPRINKLER CLASSROOM
148

V’v
XX

0
25
X
%

’V
X

TR
R

’v
e
>

V’V
L

CLASSROOM
152

CLASSROOM
142

’V
RIS,

RO os

0:9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.9.4

CRRR
B3RS

K5
otete:
RS

TSI ALRS
0202002022020 %0 205020 20202020 %0% 2e2e24

VAVAVAN

KX R IKIRILRPLHKK
KK KASEEA XK
00000000 BB ot

£
PAVAvAvAVAVA

<

P

N

K2

CLASSROOM
149

CLASSROOM
1563

CLASSROOM
143

71\ FLOOR PLAN

CLASSROOM
123

CLASSROOM
120

CLASSROOM
107

CLASSROOM
108

CLASSROOM
121

CLASSROOM
122

NORTH

\at18) 3/30r =100 [0l [ 1108 214"

] /.
KEY PLAN - AREA'A’
1"=100-0"

129



FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

REFINISH WOOD DOORS AND PAINT HM FRAME

{ PAINT HM DOORS AND HM FRAME

@@Ed@E»@E»® DEMO TACK WALL COVERING, REPLACE WITH NEW GYP & PAINT
CGEES NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS
PAINT WALLS

PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW EXTERIOR WINDOW SHADE

PAINT HM WINDOW FRAME

RESURFACING OPERABLE PARTITIONS
@ @» @a» @a» » DEMO WALL TILE AND REPLACE WITH NEW PORCELAIN TILE
CEaE==3 DEMO WALL

NEW WALL

NEW PORCELAIN TILE

NEW WALK-OFF CARPET

PAINTED CONCRETE

REPLACE VCT

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

REFINISH EPOXY COUNTERTOP

NEW TOILET PARTITIONS AND ACCESSORIES

REPLACED LOCKERS

REPLACE EXISTING CASEWORK

50 FIRST FEET REMODEL

EEEN =N

) (.
CLASSROOM
30
| J!
CLASSROOM l-]
31

OFFICE

CLASSROOM
26

CLASSROOM
36

CLASSROOM
27

CLASSROOM
37

CLASSROOM
28

CLASSROOM
104

RECEPTIO
101

CLASSROOM
105

CONFERENCE

95

WAITING |
86

OFFICE

OFFICE

CLASSROOM
110

OFFICE

OFFICE

KITCHEN
69

REFINISH WOOD
PANELING BENEATH

PARTITION

CAFETERIA

64

FAMILY TLT.

M LOCKER

48

N
.

A
A

(0

%

X
“

s
e

o

55

7
ol

7
Vel

KR
ol

5,

".

7
i

2

[
o

ot

etel

oo
£

5

T
’0

e
5

o
o

v,v
S5

K
S

¥

SHOWER
51

2
E

] [ g
| )

WEIGHT ROOM
56

COACH'S LOCKER

GYM
58

130

116 115
NEW FAMILY RESTROOM R P ——
MEDIA CENTER UPDATES \
WORK ROOM REVISIONS /
CLASSROOM BA
SERVING LINE UPGRADES 117 MENT STOR. 76
CLASSROOM
i 111
ADDITIONAL SCOPE NOT SHOWN ON PLAN: COR
- REPLACE FIRE ALARM SYSTEM - ENTIRE BUILDING 19 T Y Y Y Y T Y %
- L YYyY
CLASSROOM
118
CLASSROOM
112
/ 1\ FLOOR PLAN R

\a1-18/ 3/30 = 10" o'l |  |10-8" [21-4"

MPS NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS N

KEY PLAN - AREA'B'
1"=100-0"

BCOMNO. 3027-18 NOVEMBER 23, 2020



131

CEILING WORK TO CEILING WORK TO
BE COMPLETED BE COMPLETED
SUMMER 2021 SUMMER 2022
01 o6 21
* 1]
17
12
05 22
10 20
02 03 07 | 08 ——
18 |
13
DZQ 24
23 |
15 |
04 | 39 ‘ 19 |
|
i 115A / 25 ] U
| | ’ |
/ \
i N
T =
16 |
|
‘I:I Fl I | FI g
0 &138 T
1136
102A*
RELECTED CEILING PLAN LEGEND 126 7
133 129 128 127
NEW ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING \ |
101 102%
NEW CLEANABLE ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING 105% 125
EXISTING CEILING TO REMAIN
104* .
. 139
E1 13|
103% 109
1159
63 145
160
=
123
\ \ \ \ \
1141 146 147 1157 1120
1162 161 |
1150
”154 1148
144
1142 1152 121
1119
1149
143 153 122

NORTH

/1 REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - AREA 'A'
8514/ 3732'=1-0" o'l |  [10-8 121-4"

MPS NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS V00 1Y

O KEY PLAN - AREA ‘A’
BCOMNO. 3027-18 NOVEMBER 23, 2020 1"=100-0"

. L




RELECTED CEILING PLAN LEGEND

NEW ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING

NEW CLEANABLE ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING

EXISTING CEILING TO REMAIN

MPS NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

BCOMNO. 3027-18 NOVEMBER 23, 2020

CEILING WORK TO CEILING WORK TO
BE COMPLETED BE COMPLETED
SUMMER 2021 SUMMER 2022
26 36 |
30
|
|
|
35
27 29 37 458
|40 |
[ \ ‘ 45A
31 | 46
47 |
| -48 -56
398 41
i 39 ﬁ -45 i 50 i i
| \ \ ‘ ‘ |
28 32 111 38 | 39A | 42 | 53
|
!
_ |
34 39 R ——
67
89 | 66A
} 68 } L
‘
99 | _— o
91
P 1100 = | ‘
1104 F
h
I -
1 92
01 o cags H 58
101 98 |
N L | [F 64 |
| = F
I i E 69
105 93 [ [ [ ]
103 | t
F
a )
Ehaw SRS
| ‘
71 | 70
114
! |
!
|
L 1 L 1
| | 110 P
116 115 | — 80 %77 74 135
79 ‘H | d
‘ 75C
81 ~ 75B
117
a2 78 | 75D
113 111
75E
|
! | FIRE SPRINKLER WORK TO BE
‘ | | COMPLETED SUMMER 2022
1118 |
112
/1 REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - AREA 'B' NORTH
&5-18/ 3/32"=1-0" o'l |  [|10-8" 121-4"
J
lAl

KEY PLAN - AREA'B'

O

1"=100-0"

132



NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL - 2020 BOND - INTERIOR RENOVATION

DIVISION

10

11

12

13

14

21

22

23

26

27

31

32

SD PROBABLE COST ESTIMATE
11/23/2020
DESCRIPTION
GENERAL CONDITIONS
Existing Conditions
CONCRETE
MASONRY
METALS

WOOD PLASTICS & COMPOSITES

THERMAL / MOISTURE PROTECTION
DOORS & WINDOWS

FINISHES

SPECIALTIES

EQUIPMENT

FURNISHINGS

SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

CONVEYING SYSTEMS

FIRE SUPPRESSION

PLUMBING

HEATING VENTILATING & AIR CONDITIONING

ELECTRICAL

SPECIAL SYSTEMS

EARTHWORK

EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS

TOTAL

COST

332,929

9,000
914,552
235,260

35,000

214,225

75,000

15,000

20,000

222,300

2,073,266

133



Agenda Item:

Meeting Date:

Background/
Description:

Action Desired:

Policy /
Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible Person(s):

AGENDA SUMMARY
SHEET

Approval of Contract for Central Middle School Annex Rooftop Unit
Replacement

December 7, 2020

This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond
issue.

Copies of the engineer’s letter and the bid tab are attached. A representative
from Morrissey Engineering will be present to answer any questions.

It is recommended that the contract for the Central Middle School Annex
Rooftop Unit Replacement be awarded to Ray Martin Company in the
amount of $118,500 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to
execute any and all documents related to such project.

N/A

Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:

134



135

November 12, 2020
Millard Public Schools
13906 F Street
Omaha, NE 68137

Attn: John Brennan

Project #20256: Central Middle School Annex RTU Replacement
RE: Bid Proposals dated November 10, 2020

John:
Bids were received for the Central Middle School Annex RTU Replacement Project at MPS Support
Services Center on November 10, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. The project includes the replacement of packaged

gas-fired DX VAV rooftop unit. The MPS initial estimate for the project was $125,000.

Per the attached bid tab, four bids were received. The low base bid was submitted by Ray Martin
Company in the amount of $118,500.

Ray Martin Company has satisfactorily completed several projects with Morrissey Engineering and MPS
in the past. Our estimate for the project construction cost was $125,000 (one-hundred, twenty-five
thousand dollars). Therefore, we are recommending accepting the base bid from Ray Martin Company in
the amount of $118,500 (one-hundred eighteen thousand, five-hundred dollars).

Ray Martin Company indicated on their Bid Proposal they would complete the project by July 30st, 2021
per the specifications.

Please advise if you require any additional information.
Sincerely,
Nick Limpach, PE

Enclosure



136

PROJECT: MPS CMS Annex RTU Replacement
BID DATE: 11/10/2020
BID TIME: 10:00 AM
MEI PROJECT NO.: 20256
BID TABULATION
BIDDER Base Bid Addendum #1 Bid Bond Comments
Praire Mechanical $124,700 YES YES
MMC Contractors $126,225 YES YES
Mechanical Systems $119,920 YES YES
Ray Martin Company $118,500 YES YES

Bids to replace the Rooftop unit at CMS Annex as described in construction documents dated 10/20/20, and addendum 1 dated 11/10/20.




Agenda Item:

Meeting Date:

Background/
Description:

Action Desired:

Policy /
Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible Person(s):

AGENDA SUMMARY
SHEET

Award of Contract for Millard North High School Bleacher Replacement

December 7, 2020

This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond
issue.

Copies of the architect’s letter and the bid tab are attached. A representative
from BCDM Architects will be present to answer any questions.

It is recommended that the contract for the Millard North High School
Bleacher Replacement be awarded to Crouch Recreation in the amount of
$320,519 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute any
and all documents related to such project.

N/A

Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:

137



23 November 2020

Mr. Chad Meisgeier

Millard Public Schools

Don Stroh Administration Center
5606 South 147 Street
Omaha, NE 68137

RE: MPS North High School
Main Gym Bleacher Replacement
BCDM Project No. 3029-31

Dear Chad:

On November 19, 2020, bids were received for the above referenced project at the MPS Support Services Center. Per the
attached bid tabulation sheet, six (6) bids were received with a low bid of $320,519.00 from Crouch Recreation, Inc.
The original project construction budget was estimated at $350,000.00 with an architect’s estimate of $370,000.00 when
miscellaneous additional project scope items were included within the final bidding documents.

Since the time of the bid opening, we have confirmed with Crouch Recreation that they are comfortable with their bid for
this work. We have also reviewed the bids received with MPS staff and would recommend that a construction contract
be awarded to Crouch Recreation, Inc. in the amount of $320,519.00 for the MPS North High School - Main Gym

Bleacher Replacement Project.

Upon your approval, we can proceed with the preparation of contracts. Please let me know if you should have any questions
or concerns.

Sincerely,

Pat Carson, AIA
Principal - BCDM Architects

PC/mmm
Attachment: Bid Tab

e-copy: File: 3029-31_2.1

1015 North 98" Street, Suite 300 Omaha, NE 68114 402-391-2211 www.bcdm.net




139

architects

1015 North 98th
Street, Suite 300
Omaha, NE 68114

BID TABULATION - MAIN GYM BLEACHER REPLACEMENT
19-Nov-20

North High School - Millard Public Schools
BCDM NO. 3029-31

Bidder

All Purpose Construction

Cormaci Construction

Crouch Recreation, Inc.

K.C. Petersen Construction

Midwest DCM

Rife Construction

Lump Sum Base Bid

$396,000.00

$504,970.00

$320,519.00

$394,000.00

$446,469.00

$555,413.00

Addenda (1)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Bid Security

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Page 1




140

AGENDA SUMMARY
SHEET
Agenda Item: Award of Contract for Abbott Elementary School Re-Roofing Phase 3 of 3
Meeting Date: December 7, 2020
Background/ This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond

Description: issue.

Copies of the architect’s letter and the bid tab are attached. A representative
from BVH Architecture will be present to answer any questions.

Action Desired: It is recommended that the contract for the Abbott Elementary School Re-
Roofing Phase 3 of 3 be awarded to White Castle Roofing in the amount of
$195,000 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute any
and all documents related to such project.

Policy /
Strategic Plan N/A
Reference:

Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:



141

13 November 2020

Mr. Steve Mainelli
Millard Public Schools
Facilities Management
13906 F St.

Omaha NE 68137

RE: Millard Public Schools — Abbott Elementary Roof Replacement — Ph. il

(Roof Areas B-3 & C)
BVH Project No. 20050

Dear Steve,

On Thursday, November 12, 2020, bids were received to replace the Phase Ill roof sections at Abbott Elementary School.
The project has no bid alternates. This will be the final phase of roofing at Abbott.

A total of five (5) bids were received for this work. The low bid received was from White Castle Roofing in the amount of
$195,000.00. White Castle Roofing is an Authorized Roofing Applicator for one of the specified roofing systems, and a
Manufacturer’s quality award winner. The low total project bid amount is approx. 13% below the original estimate of
$225,000. The Contractor has verified they have everything included.

White Castle Roofing previously completed the Phase Il roofing project at Abbott last Summer for the Millard District. They
did a good job and completed the work on time. Therefore we recommend acceptance of their bid in the total amount
of $195,000 if funds are available for the project.

Kelley Rosburg from BVH Architecture will be attending the School Board meeting on Dec. 7, 2020 should any questions
arise.

A copy of the bid tab is attached.
Respectfully,

BVH ARCHITECTURE

Relley 4. Resburg
Kelley A. Rosburg, AIA
Enclosure

cc: Jeremy Madson - MPS
Ryan Hausman — Roofing Solutions



MPS Abbott Elementary School Roof Replacement Phase Il (Areas B-3 & C)

BID TABULATION

BVH #20050

12 November 2020 at 9:00 a.m.

142

UNIT PRICE: _ _ UNIT PRICE:
BID Deteriorated USI\:IeLIP:ﬂ(/:;' %’ilt-‘l;rli:;ﬂ?e% UNIT PRICE: Acoustical Metal
CONTRACTORS AD BASE BID Steel Deck . Additional Wood Deck Replacement
BOND . Metal Deck Wood Nailer .
Preparation Nailers — Roof C only
: Replacement | Replacement
and Coating
EgggﬁgBros' yves | 1 | $232,000.00 |$10.00 | /SF | $20.00 | /SF | $6.00 | /BF $4.00 | /BF $25.00 | /SF
gggfﬁ’r‘fgde”t yes | 1 | $209,000.00 | $2.50 | /SF | $8.95| /SF | $3.50 | /BF $2.95 | /BF $11.95 | /SF
McKinnis
Roofing yes | 1 | $224,776.00 | $6.00 | /SF | $13.50 | /SF | $7.00 | /BF $7.00 | /BF N/A ISF
JRRoofing,LLC | yes | 1 | $211,000.00 | $1.25| /SF | $15.00 | /SF | $9.98 | /BF $9.98 | /BF $19.00 | /SF
‘évé’étf?nga“'e yes | 1 | $195,000.00 | $8.00 | /SF | $14.00 | /SF | $4.00 | /BF $4.00 | /BF $34.00 | /SF
ISF ISF /BF /BF ISF




Agenda Item:

Meeting Date:

Background/
Description:

Action Desired:

Policy /
Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible Person(s):

AGENDA SUMMARY
SHEET

Approval of Contract for Bryan Elementary School Paving Replacement
Phase 2 of 2

December 7, 2020

This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond
issue.

Copies of the engineer’s letter and the bid tab are attached. A representative
from Lamp Rynearson will be present to answer any questions.

It is recommended that the contract for the Bryan Elementary School Paving
Replacement Phase 2 of 2 be awarded to Carley Construction in the amount
of $257,236.50 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute
any and all documents related to such project.

N/A

Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:

143



144

November 25, 2020

Mr. Jeremy Madson
Project Manager
Millard Public Schools
13906 F Street
Omaha, NE 68137

REFERENCE: Bryan Elementary School

Parking Lot Reconstruction — Phase 2 2021

Job No. 0120039.01-020
Dear Mr. Madson:
Bids were opened on Tuesday, November 24, 2020. The original project budget was $237,050.00.
During scope definition and design, the engineer’s estimate for the project was $275,672.00. Carley
Construction submitted the low bid of $257,236.50. Bid tabs are enclosed.
The low bidder has previously successfully completed this type of work for Millard Public Schools and
is qualified to complete this project within the required time. We recommend award of the work to
Carley Construction.
Please inform us if award of the work is to be made, so that we can make the necessary arrangements.

Sincerely,

LAMP RYNEARSON

M

Joe Zadina, P.E.
Senior Project Manager

Enclosures



LAMP RYNEARSON
0120039.01-020

MPS BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT RECONSTRUCTION

ADDENDUWMS ISSUED 1
NOVEMBER 24, 2020

GARGARELLA/ZADINA PAGE 1 OF 2
CARLEY CONSTRUCTION | TR CONSTRUCTION DPS LLC MIDWEST DCM
ITEM APPROXIMATE

NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE| AMOUNT [UNIT PRICE| AMOUNT |UNITPRICE| AMOUNT |UNIT PRICE| AMOUNT [UNIT PRICE| AMOUNT

1. |MOBILIZATION 11 Ls 8,000.00 $8,000.00]  6,396.00 $6,396.00|  9,000.00 $9,000.00] 15,500.00|  $15,500.00 $0.00
EXPLORATORY EXCAVATION

2. |(ASSUMED) 5/ HR 50.00 $250.00 164.00 $820.00 250.00 $1,250.00 125.00 $625.00 $0.00

3. |EARTHWORK (HAUL-OFF) 50/ CY 18.50 $925.00 16.70 $835.00 23.00 $1,150.00 22.00 $1,100.00 $0.00
REMOVE AND REPLACE

4. |UNSUITABLE MATERIAL (ASSUMED) 100, CY 40.00 $4,000.00 63.00 $6,300.00 34.50 $3,450.00 37.00 $3,700.00 $0.00

5. |REMOVE PAVEMENT 3773  SY 7.00]  $26,411.00 7.75]  $29,240.75 8.28]  $31,240.44 7.00]  $26,411.00 $0.00

6. |REMOVE SIDEWALK 950] SF 1.25 $1,187.50 1.14 $1,083.00 0.75 $712.50 1.50 $1,425.00 $0.00
REMOVE, SALVAGE, AND

7. |REINSTALL GRATE INLET TOP 1|  EA 650.00 $650.00|  1,474.00 $1,474.00 500.00 $500.00 500.00 $500.00 $0.00

8. |SAW-CUT PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH 320 LF 4.50 $1,440.00 517 $1,654.40 3.45 $1,104.00 5.00 $1,600.00 $0.00

9. |SUBGRADE PREPARATION 3880  SY 3.00]  $11,640.00 1.83 $7,100.40 2.07 $8,031.60 315 $12,222.00 $0.00
CONSTRUCT 7" PC CONCRETE

10. |PAVEMENT 3880  SY 44.50|  $172,660.00 44.70|  $173,436.00 55.00]  $213,400.00 58.00|  $225,040.00 $0.00
CONSTRUCT 5" PC CONCRETE

11. |SIDEWALK 410 SF 6.00 $2,460.00 5.78 $2,369.80 6.25 $2,562.50 5.00 $2,050.00 $0.00
CONSTRUCT CONCRETE CURB

12. |RAMP 211|  SF 18.00 $3,798.00 13.10 $2,764.10 10.00 $2,110.00 42.00 $8,862.00 $0.00
CONSTRUCT 6" CONCRETE

13. |BOLLARD 4  EA 725.00 $2,900.00 446.00 $1,784.00 750.00 $3,000.00 985.00 $3,940.00 $0.00
DRILL AND GROUT NO. 5 X 1-6" TIE

14. |BARS @ 4'-0" CENTERS 65| EA 7.00 $455.00 21.90 $1,423.50 25.00 $1,625.00 20.00 $1,300.00 $0.00
CONSTRUCT PERMANENT PAINT

15. |MARKING - 4" STALLS 1500 LF 0.60 $900.00 1.11 $1,665.00 0.80 $1,200.00 2.00 $3,000.00 $0.00

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE: $275,672.00
BID AMOUNT 5% TOTAL BID AMOUNT

LW\L:\Engineering\0120039 MPS Bryan Elem Parking Lot Reconstruction\DOCUMENTS\ADVERTISING AND ADDENDUMS\PHASE 2\0120039 MPS Bryan Elem Parking Lot Reconstruction Bid Tabs 201124.xIsx




MPS BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT RECONSTRUCTION

LAMP RYNEARSON

ADDENDUWMg ISSUED 1
0120039.01-020

NOVEMBER 24, 2020

GARGARELLA/ZADINA PAGE 2 OF 2
CARLEY CONSTRUCTION | TR CONSTRUCTION DPS LLC MIDWEST DCM
ITEM APPROXIMATE
NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE| AMOUNT [UNIT PRICE| AMOUNT |UNITPRICE| AMOUNT |UNIT PRICE| AMOUNT [UNIT PRICE| AMOUNT
CONSTRUCT 24" WHITE
16. |CROSSWALK STRIPING 120 LF 4.00 $480.00 7.02 $842.40 35.00 $4,200.00 10.00 $1,200.00 $0.00
17. |CONSTRUCT ROCK ACCESS ROAD 30, TN 35.00 $1,050.00 58.00 $1,740.00 80.00 $2,400.00 50.00 $1,500.00 $0.00
INSTALL 4' TALL BLACK VINYL
18. |COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE 114 LF 42.50 $4,845.00 45.00 $5,130.00 20.00 $2,280.00 28.00 $3,192.00 $0.00
PREFORMED PAVEMENT MARKING
TAPE MARKING SYMBOL - WHITE
19. |DIRECTIONAL ARROW 4  EA 590.00 $2,360.00 585.00 $2,340.00 600.00 $2,400.00 350.00 $1,400.00 $0.00
20. |BARRICADING 1 Ls 1,500.00 $1,500.00]  1,200.00 $1,200.00]  1,200.00 $1,200.00]  1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00
21. |SEEDING, TYPE "A" 02| AC 3,500.00 $700.00]  4,095.00 $819.00]  3,500.00 $700.00]  5,300.00 $1,060.00 $0.00
ROLLED EROSION CONTROL, TYPE
22. |l 1000  SY 1.60 $1,600.00 1.35 $1,350.00 1.25 $1,250.00 2.50 $2,500.00 $0.00
23. |CONSTRUCT SILT FENCE 125 LF 5.60 $700.00 3.80 $475.00 3.15 $393.75 4.00 $500.00 $0.00
24. |REMOVE SILT FENCE 125|  LF 1.00 $125.00 1.17 $146.25 1.50 $187.50 2.00 $250.00 $0.00
25. |TREE PROTECTION 7| EA 140.00 $980.00 178.00 $1,246.00 143.75 $1,006.25 55.00 $385.00 $0.00
26. |INLET PROTECTION 11 EA 220.00 $220.00 293.00 $293.00 150.00 $150.00 150.00 $150.00 $0.00
27. |UTILITY RELOCATION ALLOWANCE 1 Ls 5,000.00 $5,000.00]  5,000.00 $5,000.00]  5,000.00 $5,000.00]  5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00 $0.00
TOTAL BID AMOUNT $257,236.50 $258,927.60 $301,503.54 $325,912.00 $0.00

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE: $275,672.00
BID AMOUNT 5% TOTAL BID AMOUNT

LW\L:\Engineering\0120039 MPS Bryan Elem Parking Lot Reconstruction\DOCUMENTS\ADVERTISING AND ADDENDUMS\PHASE 2\0120039 MPS Bryan Elem Parking Lot Reconstruction Bid Tabs 201124.xIsx




Agenda Item:

Meeting Date:

Background/
Description:

Action Desired:

Policy /
Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible Person(s):

AGENDA SUMMARY
SHEET

Approval of Contract for Disney Elementary School Rooftop Unit
Replacement

December 7, 2020

This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond
issue.

Copies of the engineer’s letter and the bid tab are attached. A representative
from Morrissey Engineering will be present to answer any questions.

It is recommended that the contract for the Disney Elementary School
Rooftop Unit Replacement be awarded to Eyman Plumbing Heating and Air
in the amount of $744,400 and that the Chief Financial Officer be
authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project.

N/A

Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:

147



148

November 25, 2020

Millard Public Schools
5606 South 147t Street
Omaha, NE 68137

Attn: John Brennan

Project #20230: MPS Disney Elementary School Rooftop Unit Replacement
RE: Bid Proposals dated November 24, 2020

John:

Bids were received for the Disney Elementary School Rooftop Unit Replacement Project at the MPS
Support Services Center on November 24, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. The project includes the replacement of
three multizone rooftop air handling units and one single zone VAV rooftop unit, electrical work and
temperature controls associated with the new rooftop unit equipment. The Millard Public Schools initial
estimate for this project was $620,000.

Morrissey engineering probable cost for the project was $680,000. Please note that this estimate
included grated maintenance platforms around each of the five rooftop units to assist in maintenance and
provide roof protection. Roof hydrant to assist in annual roof equipment maintenance. Temperature
controls were modified to provide Variable Air Volume sequence to each multizone rooftop unit for
additional energy savings.

Per the attached bid tab, seven bids were received. The low base bid was submitted by Eyman Plumbing
Heating and Air in the amount of $744,400. This bid was $27,100 lower than the next lowest bidder.

We are recommending accepting the base bid from Eyman Plumbing and HVAC in the amount of
$744,400 (Seven Hundred Fourty-Four Thousand Four Hundred dollars).

Eyman Plumbing Heating and Air Contractors indicated on their Bid Proposal they would complete the
project by July 30, 2021 per the specifications.

Please advise if you require any additional information.

Sincerely,

John Delaney

Enclosure

4940 North 118th Street
Omaha, NE 68164
P: 402.491.4144
www.morrisseyengineering.com



PROJECT: Millard Public Schools - Disney Elementary School
Rooftop Unit Replacement
BID DATE: 11/24/2020
BID TIME: 10:00 AM
MEI PROJECT NO.: 20230
BID TABULATION
BIDDER Base Bid Addendum #1 Bid Bond Comments
Ray Martin Company $796,300 YES YES
Grunwald Mechanical $776,767 YES YES
Eyman Plumbing Heating &Air $744,400 YES YES
Mechanical Systems Inc. $804,840 YES YES
MCC Contractors $788,600 YES YES
Sol Lewis Engineering $771,500 YES YES
Carter's Heating & Air $1,398,000 YES YES

Bids to replace three Multizone Rooftop units and one VAV RTU at Disney Elementary School as described in construction documents dated 11-4-2020

149



Agenda Item:

Meeting Date:

Background/
Description:

Action Desired:

Policy /
Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible Person(s):

AGENDA SUMMARY
SHEET

Approval of Contract for Morton Elementary School Rooftop Unit
Replacement

December 7, 2020

This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond
issue.

Copies of the engineer’s letter and the bid tab are attached. A representative
from Morrissey Engineering will be present to answer any questions.

It is recommended that the contract for the Morton Elementary School
Rooftop Unit Replacement be awarded to MMC Mechanical Contractors in
the amount of $454,500 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized
to execute any and all documents related to such project.

N/A

Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:

150



151

November 20, 2020

Millard Public Schools
5606 South 147t Street
Omaha, NE 68137

Attn: John Brennan

Project #20265: MPS Morton Elementary School Multizone Rooftop Unit Replacement
RE: Bid Proposals dated November 19, 2020

John:

Bids were received for the Morton Elementary School Multizone Rooftop Unit Replacement Project at the
MPS Support Services Center on November 19, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. The project includes the replacement
of two multizone rooftop air handling units, electrical work and temperature controls associated with the
new rooftop unit equipment. A new maintenance platform was included around the multizone units for
ease of maintenance and roof protection. The MPS initial estimate for the project was $480,000.

Per the attached bid tab, four bids were received. The low base bid was submitted by MMC Mechanical
Contractors in the amount of $454,500. This bid was $22,404 lower than the next lowest bidder.

MMC Contractors has satisfactorily completed several projects with Morrissey Engineering and MPS in
the past. Our estimate for the project construction cost including the temperature control allowance was
$480,000 (four-hundred, eighty-thousand dollars). Therefore, we are recommending accepting the base
bid from MMC Contractors in the amount of $454,500 (Four Hundred Fifty-Four Thousand Five Hundred
dollars).

MMC Contractors indicated on their Bid Proposal they would complete the project by July 30st, 2021 per
the specifications.

Please advise if you require any additional information.

Sincerely,

John Delaney

Enclosure

4940 North 118th Street
Omaha, NE 68164
P: 402.491.4144
www.morrisseyengineering.com



152

PROJECT: Millard Public Schools _Morton Elementary School
Multizone Rooftop Unit Replacement
BID DATE: 11/19/2020
BID TIME: 9:00 AM
MEI PROJECT NO.: 20265
BID TABULATION
BIDDER Base Bid Addendum #1 Bid Bond Comments
Ray Martin Company $482,300 - YES
MMC Contractors $454,500 - YES
Grunwald Mechanical $476,904 - YES
Mechanical Systems Inc $519,480 - YES

Bids to replace the two Multizone Rooftop units at Morton Elementary School as described in construction documents dated 10-29-2020




153

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Approval of Schematic Design for Central Middle School
Meeting Date: December 7, 2020

Background/ The progressive steps for construction projects are generally as follows:
Description:
1. Schematic Design (SD) * Board Meeting Presentation
- “50 thousand feet view” — initial design and cost estimates
2. Design Development (DD)
- “10 thousand feet view” — refined design and cost estimates
3. Construction Documents (CD) *Board Meeting Presentation
- Final design and cost estimates for contractors to bid the project.
4. Bidding/Awarding of Contract (BA) * Board Meeting Presentation
- The receipt of bids and award of the construction contract.
5. Contract Administration (CA)
- Supervision and documentation of the construction project.

Attached is the Schematic Design and initial cost estimates for the Central Middle
School project. Central Middle School is one of the renovation projects budgeted
in the 2020 bond.
The budget construction cost during the bond preparation process was $11,539,787
plus improvements in the learning commons area in the amount of $174,000 for a
total of $11,713,787. The Schematic Design Estimate is $11,713,680.
BCDM Architects will be present to answer any questions.

Action Desired: It is recommended that the schematic design for the Central Middle School
project be approved as submitted.

Policy /

Strategic Plan N/A

Reference:

Responsible Person(s): Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer

Superintendent’s Signature:



[ | NEW FULLY ADHERED EPDM MEMBRANE ROOF @ @
TRUE NORTH  PLAN NORTH

ROOF PLAN
1/64" = 1'-0"

1

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23



bmacke
Polygon

bmacke
Polygon

bmacke
Polygon

bmacke
Polygon


NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME ~ = == == =  NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS NEW BLEACHERS NEW CARPET NEW QUARRY TILE

] NEWWOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME s DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS NEW BENCHES

a PAINT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE KITCHEN ADDITION

a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES NEW HM WINDOWS NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING BBl NEW FAMILY RESTROOM
] PANT FRAVE e PAINT WALLS WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY NEW WOOD FLOORS B NEw2x2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT
— NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS NEW SHEET LINOLEUM KX MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES

- -

NEW CASEWORK NEW 12X12 VCT

il i ]
IZ‘MECHANH:AL r‘L‘L“ MECHANICAL
j ! D5

B11 = - — D5

7

PRODUCTI
c3
o} e P b
CLASSROOM *

% 500
CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM
501 502 503 S04

CLASSROOM
400

e [ PRIMARY CURTAINWALL REPLACEMENT o | -
i

ﬂ CLASSROOM
404

CAFETERIA
154

\ i

i

CLASSROOM
403

KITcHEN
829

— cusson
3 402

COOLERIFREEZER
ca6

=]
SCENCE
CLASSROOM
a0

INNOVATIOE

MULTI
PURPOSE
ROOM

7

S D

FLOOR PLAN - MAIN LEVEL TRUE NORTH  PLAN NORTH
1" = 60'_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME

] NEW WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME
] PANT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME
a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME

] PANT FRAVE

NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS

DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB

PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE

PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES

PAINT WALLS

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW CASEWORK

CLASSROOM
101

cuassroom
1

opeN oFFIcE
125

dg |

opeN oFFIcE
130

L.

cLASSROOM
136

cuassroom
145

MECHANICAL
148

]

NEW BLEACHERS

NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE

NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS

NEW HM WINDOWS

WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY

NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS

NEW CARPET

REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS
NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE

NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING Il
NEW WOOD FLOORS

NEW SHEET LINOLEUM

NEW 12X12 VCT

eeeeegal

COMPUTER
CLASSROOM

SciEnce
CLASSROOM
107

CLASSROOM
105

cLassRoOM
104

COMPUTER

LAB
101

ﬁ cuassroom
108

CLASSROOM
us

cuassroom
216

!

cuassroom
215

cuassroom
208

——

i S——]

NEW QUARRY TILE

NEW BENCHES

KITCHEN ADDITION

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

NEW 2X2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT

MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES

cuassroom
207

CLASSROOM
109

ﬂpx_s—mw

CLASSROOM
14

cussRooME
214

cuassroom
110

[ e——

CLASSROOM
1

TECHNOLOGY
CLASSROOM
u3

TECHNOLOGY
CLASSROOM

=i

IECHNOLOGY
CLASSROOM
213

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM
22

cLassRoOM
100

d

CLASSROOM
200

R

CLASSROOM
206

cuassroom
210

cuassroom
25

CLASSROOM
204

cLASSROOM
208

TECHNOLOGY
305

HomE
EcoNoMics
304

EcoNoMics
307

CLASSROOM

N

&

cLassRoOM
201

CLASSROOM
22

PRIMARY CURTAINWALL REPLACEMENT o

=

[N

SCOPE PLAN - UPPER LEVEL - COMPQOSITE

303

cLassRoOM
302

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM
408

>

TRUE NORTH

CLASSROOM
412

CLASSROOM
a1
CLASSROOM
410

CLASSROOM
409

D

PLAN NORTH

1/64" = 1'-0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME =~ = == == = NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS

NEW WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME

a PAINT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME
a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME

] PANT FRAVE

DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB

PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE

PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES
PAINT WALLS
NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW CASEWORK

D

KEY PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA 'A’

Q O e e A A e e T

LOCKERS ¢

WOMENS

A1

2

STORAGE
A9

X

TOILET
A1 LI
A1l

STORAGE
A8

Gl RRRNNNRRRRRNNNARRRRNNAN]

INNOVATION LAB
) TOR.

A37

NEW BLEACHERS

NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE

NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS

NEW HM WINDOWS

WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY

NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS

NEW CARPET

REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS

NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE

NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING

NEW WOOD FLOORS

NEW SHEET LINOLEUM

NEW 12X12 VCT

i [l

NEW QUARRY TILE

NEW BENCHES

KITCHEN ADDITION

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

NEW 2X2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT

MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES

BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB BELOW

S D

TRUE NORTH  PLAN NORTH

FLOOR PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA'A'
1" = 30'_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME ~ = == == =  NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS NEW BLEACHERS NEW CARPET NEW QUARRY TILE

] NEWWOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAVE s DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS NEW BENCHES

a PAINT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE KITCHEN ADDITION

a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES NEW HM WINDOWS NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING BBl NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

] PANT FRAVE PAINT WALLS WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY NEW WOOD FLOORS B NEw 2x2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT
NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS NEW SHEET LINOLEUM KX MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES

NEW CASEWORK NEW 12X12 VCT

1 ) . 1 1T j S— | T N AN 5 5 i s ) W

W] ‘ 2k N w Wﬁa@irm‘sa; CORRIDOI;Q
=4 Bis = D

MDE SEC./REC. Q | ! ! !
By B4 OFFICE NURSE| | CLASSROOM
D e L

ELEV. EQUIP. CORRIDOR
B5 c1

PRIMARY CURTAINWALL REPLACEMENT
STORAGE

B4

A

CORRIDOR
B3

&

CORRIDOR

MECHANICAL

KEY PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA 'B'

‘ u u ]
CAFETERIA CORRIDOR E CORRIDOR
154 B21 c21 7]

" SERVERY OE e U
B21 0 ]

LOUNGE

KITCHEN

B29 OLOSET

€29

COOLER/FREEZER
€46

>

TRUE NORTH  PLAN NORTH

FLOOR PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA 'B'
1" = 30'_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME ~ = == == =  NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS NEW BLEACHERS NEW CARPET NEW QUARRY TILE
NEW WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS NEW BENCHES
a PAINT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE KITCHEN ADDITION
a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES NEW HM WINDOWS NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING BBl NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

a PAINT FRAME PAINT WALLS WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY NEW WOOD FLOORS HE  nEw 2X2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT

—
— NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS NEW SHEET LINOLEUM KX MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES
- - -

NEW CASEWORK NEW 12X12 VCT

CORRIDOR
c51

ENEEERRNARERNnEN}] IRNNNRRNANRRNNRNEN T—

CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM
501 502 503 504

CLASSROOM
405

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM
400

CLASSROOM
404

=

=l
D11

T

CORRIDOR

SCIENCE
STORAGE

KEY PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA 'C' bz

[

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM
401

CLASSROOM
403

CLASSROOM
402

> D

TRUE NORTH  PLAN NORTH

WWWWWWFHF \AU—_UHJJJJJJJJJJJJJ/
[ I—‘F\_‘

(2]
5

(23
[ — -]

FLOOR PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA 'C'
1" = 30'_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME ~ = == == =  NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS NEW BLEACHERS NEW CARPET NEW QUARRY TILE
NEW WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS NEW BENCHES
a PAINT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE KITCHEN ADDITION
a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES NEW HM WINDOWS NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

] PANT FRAVE PAINT WALLS WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY NEW WOOD FLOORS NEW 2X2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT

—

— NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS NEW SHEET LINOLEUM MEDIA CENTEI? UPGRADES E
7

- - e -

NEW CASEWORK NEW 12X12 VCT

KEY PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA'E'

|

MECHANICAL
== B == e C12

D il | I N 1)

MENS WOMENS WOMEN
B10 B12 C13

> D

FLOOR PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA'E' TRUE NORTH ~ PLAN NORTH
1" = 30'_0"

2

CLASSROOM WOMEN
905 D2 EMECHANICAL
|

arn

- i |
IDF STOR.

1 D3 @

FLOOR PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA 'D' TRUENORTH  PLAN NORTH
1" = 30'_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23

KEY PLAN - MAIN LEVEL AREA 'D'

1




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

1

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME

] NEW WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME
] PANT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME
a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME

] PANT FRAVE

—
—
—
- - e -

i E—

NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS

DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB
PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE

PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES

PAINT WALLS

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW CASEWORK

NEW BLEACHERS

NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE

NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS

NEW HM WINDOWS

WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY

NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS

NEW CARPET

REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS

NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE

NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING

NEW WOOD FLOORS

NEW SHEET LINOLEUM

NEW 12X12 VCT

i ]

NEW QUARRY TILE
NEW BENCHES
KITCHEN ADDITION

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

|
|
XA

NEW 2X2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT

MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES

HVI I f‘—‘—'—*‘.ﬂ—‘:.igi—r_!/ T

COMPUTER
CLASSROOM
102

COMPUTER LAB

101

CORRIDOR

@lJl 1 [

m =]

D

v

WORKROOM
J2

CLASSROOM

100

P

TAI
s2

CLASSROOM

| —

201

KEY PLAN - UPPER LEVEHL AREA 'B'

CLASSROOM

202

SCOPE PLAN - UPPER LEVEL AREA 'B'

TRUE NORTH

> D

PLAN NORTH

1 n = 30'_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME ~ = == == =  NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS NEW BLEACHERS NEW CARPET NEW QUARRY TILE
NEW WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS NEW BENCHES
a PAINT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE KITCHEN ADDITION
a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES NEW HM WINDOWS NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING BBl NEW FAMILY RESTROOM
] PANT FRAVE PAINT WALLS WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY NEW WOOD FLOORS B NEw 2x2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT
NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS NEW SHEET LINOLEUM £X2]  MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES

NEW CASEWORK NEW 12X12 VCT

u! \ D
i EJ WOMEN SCIENCE
CORRIDOR 533 | STORAGE

O
ey BN alalaka. G34
JAN

CORRIDOR

D | CLASSROOM
| 202

CLASSROOM

PRIMARY CURTAINWALL REPLACEMENT =

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM
406

i
3

CLASSROOM
an

,‘
1

= [ ]

CLASSROOM
407

CORRIDOR
H1

[

E‘E\F\HHHHHHHHH

CLASSROOM
410

j

LTTTTTTTTTITTITTITTE
CCIITITTITTTITITTTT

(-

KEY PLAN - UPPER LEVEL AREA'C'

==X

H

CLASSROOM
408

X

=

CLASSROOM
409

(CLIIIITIITITTIT

> D

SCOPE PLAN - UPPER LEVEL AREA 'C’ TRUE NORTH  PLAN NORTH
1" — 30'_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME ~ = == == =  NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS NEW BLEACHERS NEW CARPET NEW QUARRY TILE
NEW WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS NEW BENCHES

a PAINT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE KITCHEN ADDITION

a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES NEW HM WINDOWS NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORIN NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

] PANT FRAVE PAINT WALLS WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY NEW WOOD FLOORS NEW 2X2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT

—
— NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS NEW SHEET LINOLEUM MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES
- - e -

NEW CASEWORK NEW 12X12 VCT

PRODUCTION

G7 —

\V4

TECHNOLOGY
305
TECHNOLOGY
306

OFFICE |
11

KEY PLAN - UPPER LEVEL AREA 'D' HOME

ECONOMICS
307

CORRIDOR

CLASSROOM !
303 !

Eﬂ—»:!J;ﬁ

1

S D

SCOPE PLAN - UPPER LEVEL AREA 'D' TRUENORTH  PLAN NORTH
1" = 30'_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS NEW BLEACHERS NEW CARPET NEW QUARRY TILE

NEW WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS NEW BENCHES

a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES NEW HM WINDOWS NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

] PANT FRAVE PAINT WALLS WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY NEW WOOD FLOORS NEW 2X2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT

—
—

a PAINT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE KITCHEN ADDITION
- - -
- - -
—

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS NEW SHEET LINOLEUM MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES

NEW CASEWORK NEW 12X12 VCT.

Il ﬂ

SCIENCE
CLASSROOM
107

CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM
108 s 216 215 208 207

a

VAN |7 AN —
I E— CORRIDOR CORRIDOR

E25 E25 d
1 i

AR e O 0 == |

CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM

109 200 206
CLASSROOM CLASSROOM 209

SCIENCE Iy 14 214

KEY PLAN - UPPER LEVEL AREA'E' CLASSROOM |
106 N A

—
[ — =1 | ?
=

E20

/4|

CORRIDOR

TECHNOLOGY TECHNOLOGY
CLASSROOM CLASSROOM CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM
113 213 [g 210

110
iy
1

CLASSROOM
205

CORRIDOR
[

4|

CORRIDOR

CLASSROOM
105

L

TECHNOLOGY SCIENCE
[0 "CLASSROOM CLASSRoOM ] SCIENCE

I WS — w 112 212 CLASSROOM CLASSROOM

21 204

= K o O e e B 8
= " CORRIDOR =

CORRIDOR
CORRIDOR Al

E34
STORAGE

CLASSROOM T O AT e )
104

CORRIDOR
E29

OFFICE

inEssEEssnss RS RS RS R EEnE)

— COMMONS

[insssnsssssEnEsEEsEnEsnEsEns)

I

CORRIDOR

L
CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM = ERSREERRREREmasssasmanmES
103

COMMONS

JFFICE!
E43 |
el OFFICE

q E40

> NIEN FFICE

-

LR

om0 0 O

SCOPE PLAN - UPPER LEVEL AREA 'E' TRUE NORTH ~ PLAN NORTH
1" = 30!_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




NEW FINISHES AND ADDITION LEGEND

a REFINISH WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME

NEW WOOD DOOR & PAINT FRAME

a PAINT HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME
a NEW HM DOOR & PAINT FRAME

] PANT FRAVE

NEW TACK BOARDS / WHITE BOARDS

DEMO OPERABLE PARTITION, INFILL W/ METAL STUDS AND GWB

PAINT HM WINDOWS & NEW WINDOW SHADE

PAINT HM WINDOW & FRAMES

PAINT WALLS

NEW SOLID SURFACE COUNTERTOP

NEW CASEWORK

NEW BLEACHERS

NEW FULL HEIGHT WALL TILE

NEW ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOWS
NEW HM WINDOWS

WALL INFILL UP TO 16" WITH MASONRY

NEW GASKETS ON ALUMINUM WINDOWS

NEW CARPET

REFINISHED WOOD FLOORS

NEW 2X2 CERAMIC TILE

NEW SHEET VINYL FLOORING Il
NEW WOOD FLOORS ||
NEW SHEET LINOLEUM

NEW 12X12 VCT

NEW QUARRY TILE
NEW BENCHES
KITCHEN ADDITION

NEW FAMILY RESTROOM

NEW 2X2 ACT - REPLACED THROUGHOUT

MEDIA CENTER UPGRADES

1

STORAGE ||| BREAK ROOM {
[J 115A 120 . | 133 .| curroom T3

@ g | OPEN OFFICE Az

=
= 131
|2

KITCHEN/
STORAGE B LAUNDRY

105 106

U J——%
e

CLASSROOM CLASSROOM
101 m

OPEN OFFICE
125

CLASSROOM
136

DFFICE
129

“dﬁﬁ

NEW EXTERIOR METAL PANELS

CLASSROOM
145

RECIEVING
146

KEY PLAN - UPPER LEVEL AREA 'F'

MECHANICAL
148

]

S

TRUE NORTH  PLAN NORTH

SCOPE PLAN - UPPER LEVEL AREA 'F'
1" = 30'_0"

MILLARD CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION / RENOVATION
BCDM PROJ. NO: 3025-23




DIVISION

10

12

14

21

22

23

26

CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITION & RENOVATION
SD PROBABLE COST ESTIMATE

11/20/2020
DESCRIPTION

GENERAL CONDITIONS

EXISTING CONDITIONS

CONCRETE

MASONRY

METALS

WOOD PLASTICS & COMPOSITES

THERMAL / MOISTURE PROTECTION

DOORS & WINDOWS

FINISHES

SPECIALTIES

FURNISHINGS

CONVEYING SYSTEMS

FIRE SUPPRESSION

PLUMBING

HEATING VENTILATING & AIR CONDITIONING

ELECTRICAL

cosT

2,315,431

301,529

5,656

23,533

20,728

191,251

1,012,531

845,011

1,370,271

431,328

196,817

152,703

622,121

910,560

1,600,549

1,713,662

TOTAL

11,713,680

166



167

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET
Agenda Item: Approval of the 2021 Summer School Proposal
Meeting Date: December 7, 2020
Background/ June 7-July 15, M-Th
Description NEW-Elementary SLAM (Summer Literacy and Mathematics) Program

Holling Heights and Cody Elementary

This new, six-week, invitational program will support students not yet
meeting the reading threshold on MAP as determined by NDE. There
will be no tuition for the Elementary Reading and Enrichment
Program.

June 7-June 24, M-Th
STEM Academy Black Elk Elementary
Middle School Summer School Beadle Middle School

June 7-July 9, M-F
High School Summer School Millard South High School

The summer school format, as described in Nebraska Statute
79-1003.01, will remain the same. Classes will be three hours long, in
blocks of 12 (STEM Academy and middle school) or 24 sessions
(Elementary SLAM and high school).

Action Desired: Approval of the 2021 Summer School Proposal
Policy/Strategic
Plan Reference: Strategy 2: We will develop and implement plans to differentiate and

expand our instructional delivery systems to meet each student’s needs
in a changing world.

Responsible Heather Phipps, Anthony Weers, Andy DeFreece, and
Person(s): Kara Hutton

Superintendent’s

Signature:

Hlof



168

2021 Summer Session Proposal

For summer school 2021, the format will remain the same as described in Nebraska Statute
79-1003.01. Classes will be three hours long, in blocks of 12 (elementary and middle school) or
24 sessions (Elementary SLAM Program and high school).

The proposed tuition rates for 2020 are in the table below. There are no proposed changes except
for the Elementary SLAM Program which will not charge tuition.

2021 Proposed 2021 Proposed
Level Resident Non-Resident
Tuition Tuition
Elementary Summer Literacy and $0 NA
Mathematics (SLAM) Program
Middle School $155 $205
Middle School Mini-Course $134 $160
Middle School Wildlife Safari Course $400 $500
High School $175 $225
High School Mini-Course $140 $165
Step-Up to High School $155 $205

In order to meet the needs of all students, attract many types of learners, and engage all students
in their summer school courses, class offerings were revisited. Recommended changes and
additions are below.

NEW-Elementary Summer Literacy and Mathematics (SLAM) Program
June 7-July 16,2019 M-Th 8:30 A.M. -3:30 P.M. Norris Elementary

e K-4 Students will be invited to attend based on winter MAP scores in Reading and
Mathematics and not meeting the Nebraska reading threshold for their grade level.
e Millard preschool students will be invited to attend Kindergarten Readiness.
EL students will also be invited.
e The morning will be dedicated to reading, writing, and math instruction.
o The curriculum will include the Leveled Literacy Intervention (LLI) program.
e The afternoon will be enrichment courses that incorporate reading, writing, and math
such as:

Music, Movement, and Drama
Art
Robotics
Puzzles and Logic
Science of the Senses
Rockets and Rovers (Engineering)
o Other STEAM offerings
In the event of high enrollment, Cody will be a second location if needed.
Breakfast and lunch will be provided.
Transportation will be provided.
Aftercare may be available at Boys and Girls Club.

O 0O O O O O



Elementary STEM Academy
June 7-June 24, 2021 M-Th 8:45 AM.-12:05 P.M. Black Elk Elementary

Demand is great for courses related to Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics

(STEM). The STEM Academy allows the elementary summer courses to be current and

engaging. Courses from 2019 will be continued. Course changes being developed include:
e (Combining Roving Reporter and Learning with Green Screen into one course

Middle School
June 7-June 24,2021 M-Th 8:00-11:15 A.M., 11:50-3:00 P.M. Beadle Middle School

The collaboration with the Henry Doorly Zoo and Wildlife Safari continues to be successful
and will be offered again in 2020. Ways to expand the course to more students are being
explored.

High School
June 7-July 9,2021 M-F  7:45-10:50 A.M., 11:25-2:30 P.M. Millard South High School

No School July 3rd

In order to meet the needs of incoming 9th-grade students in mathematics, a new, non-credit
course is being developed. This course will provide practice with the skills from Integrated Math
IIT as well as an introduction to the foundational skills of Algebra I. The new course will be
called Algebra I Skills and Applications.

169



Agenda Item:

Meeting Date:

Background/
Description:

170

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Ratification of Adjusted High School Finals Week Schedule

December 7, 2020

The high school calendar is being adjusted to allow for the effective administration of final
exams to both in person and remote learners. On Wednesday, December 16, 2020, in
person learners will stay home to prepare for final exams while remote learners will be
invited to attend in the building in order to complete final exams and receive support for
any missing work. Students in the Alternate Curriculum Program and the Young Adult
Program will attend in person as well as the Millard Career Academy students.

Action Desired: Ratify
Policy /

Strategic Plan

Reference: N/A
Responsible Person(s): Jim Sutfin

Superintendent’s Signature:



171

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: 2020-2021 Resolution & Guidelines of the Board of Education

Meeting Date: December 7, 2020

Background/

Description: This action item gives limited authority to the Superintendent to make decisions while
remaining in this state of emergency regarding school during the time period that
exceeds 10 days between the Board of Education meetings of December 7, 2020 to
January 4, 2021. The ratification from the Board of Education would occur on
January 4, 2021.

Attached is the 2020-2021 Resolution & Guidelines approved at the August 3, 2020
Board meeting.

Action Desired: Approval

Policy /

Strategic Plan

Reference:

Responsible Person(s):  Jim Sutfin

Superintendent’s Signature:

ot



172

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF
EDUCATION OF DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17
A/K/A MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT REGARDING
2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR REOPENING

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

WHEREAS, the World Health Organization has declared COVID-19 to be a global pandemic and
epidemic sickness and a national emergency was also declared on March 13, 2020 by President
Trump and was also declared to be a state of emergency by Governor Ricketts, Mayor Stothert,
the Douglas County Board of Health, and the Sarpy County Board of Health; and

WHEREAS, the Millard Public School’s Board of Education passed a Resolution authorizing and
directing the District’s Administration to make emergency expenditures, to enter into necessary
contracts, and to incur obligations related to the emergency management of the District,
notwithstanding existing statutory limitations and requirements; and

WHEREAS, the conditions presented as a result of the COVID-19 global pandemic and epidemic
sickness and resulting health conditions, continue to have serious implications affecting the safe
operation of the schools within the Millard Public School District and which have resulted in new
national, state and local executive and directed health measure orders and guidelines relating to
the reopening of school districts during the COVID-19 pandemic and for which more such
directives and guidelines are anticipated and expected relating to the reopening and operation of
the Millard Public Schools as health conditions continue to evolve; and

WHEREAS, the office of the Governor of the State has issued a statement providing that
“customers may be encouraged to wear face coverings, but may not be refused service for the
failure to do so,” under the threat of withholding federal coronavirus assistance on June 18, 2020,
and on July 17, 2020 conducted a briefing in support of safely opening schools in the fall for the
benefit of the children; and

WHEREAS, the Nebraska Department of Education and the Nebraska Department of Health and
Human Services released recommended guidelines effective July 20, 2020, that allow schools to
reopen which include a recommendation that students and teachers wear face coverings and
observe social distancing in schools, as set forth in the recommended guidelines depending on
certain factors being present in the community and as the factors may change from time to time,
leaving those decisions in the hands of the local school boards; and

WHEREAS, the Douglas County Health Department issued Directed Health Measure Order
2020-DCHD-004 on July 6, 2020, which provides guidelines and a summary of current conditions
in the District and the Douglas/Sarpy County community and sets forth the applicable related
restrictions; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of all students to be back in school where they can experience
in-class learning and in-person instruction which provides the most effective method of teaching

1



173

and instruction for all students and which promotes the educational advancement and social-
emotional wellbeing of the students; and

WHEREAS, the Millard Public Schools Administration in close consultation with the Nebraska
Commissioner of Education, the Douglas/Sarpy County Health Departments and the State of
Nebraska has developed plans and protocols for the reopening of the District’s school buildings,
facilities and programs and all such reopening plans and protocols are still under review and are
still being further developed as needs are changing and evolving and will be implemented within
the framework of the guidelines of the State and Douglas/Sarpy County Health Departments; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Education acknowledges and commits to compliance with
the directed health measure orders and the executive guidelines of the State of Nebraska in
formulating its reopening plans and protocols to allow and provide for the in-school education of
our students as our primary mission and for the safe operation of the schools and the safety of our
students and staff while fulfilling that mission.

NOW, THEREFORE, based on the framework of the COVID-19 official orders and guidelines
from the State of Nebraska and the Douglas and Sarpy County Health Departments, the District’s
Board of Education hereby approves and adopts the above stated facts, findings and determinations
and further approves and adopts the following actions:

A. The Superintendent of the District has provided a detailed report of those actions taken by
the District at his direction in order to continue and protect the education efforts of the
District, protect and secure all District facilities and property, protect and retain the
employees essential and necessary to the District and the educational activities of the
students, and to protect the public health of the students, staff and community.

B. That all closure, emergency response actions and the successful completion of the 2019-
2020 school year as accomplished by the Superintendent, Administration, teachers, and all
staff under the Board’s Resolution of March 2020, are hereby ratified and approved.

C. The State of Nebraska, the Nebraska Department of Education, and the Douglas and Sarpy
County Health Departments have issued reopening directed health measure orders and
recommended guidelines which shall be followed by all students and staff, All such State
and local executive and directed health measure orders are hereby approved and adopted
as the protocol for the reopening and safe operation of the District’s school buildings and
educational operations. A copy of the Nebraska Department of Education Guidelines is
attached hereto and incorporated herein.

D. The Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and the Nebraska
Department of Education have issued recommended guidelines that provide that the use of
face coverings/face masks are to be strongly recommended for school districts in the
reopening for the fall.

B, The Douglas County Health Department (DCHD) and the Sarpy County Health
Department issued recommended guidelines on June 19, 2020 that provide that the use of



174

face coverings/face masks are to be strongly recommended for school districts in the
reopening for the fall.

In consultation with the Nebraska Commissioner of Education, the Governor of the State
of Nebraska, and the Douglas and Sarpy County Health Departments, the District’s
Administration has developed reopening plans and protocols for the District’s schools
which presently shall require the students and staff to wear face coverings, where feasible,
which shall be enforced through disciplinary measures for willful disobedience for failure
or refusal to wear such face coverings.

District employees shall strongly encourage voluntary compliance with the face covering
requirement. Classroom teachers and personnel, in conjunction with school administrators,
shall use their individual judgment and discretion in enforcing the face covering
requirement for students, and shall also rely on their individual experience, knowledge, and
familiarity with their students in enforcing the requirement. To the extent possible, District
employees are advised to resort to disciplinary action only when the employee has
concluded that voluntary compliance is not possible, that non-compliance is purposeful
and/or repetitive, and/or that the lack of compliance has resulted in a substantial disruption
to the educational environment of the classroom.

The District’s Administration has been delegated the power and authority by the Board of
Education to implement and carry out the provisions of the school reopening plans and
protocols, to establish District policies and regulations in compliance with any State or
Douglas or Sarpy County reopening executive orders, directed health measure orders and
guidelines, and to carry out the foregoing and any and all District policies or rules relating
to the reopening and operation of schools during COVID-19 emergency management.

That all such reopening plans and protocols, as well as all such actions of the
Superintendent, Administration and staff, shall be designed and taken for the purposes and
objectives of safely reopening the District’s schools for the in-school education of the
District’s students while implementing and maintaining reasonable safety measures to
minimize disease transmission and protect the health and safety of students, staff and the
community, and to provide for continued in-school education of the District’s students
thereby minimizing the use of and the need for distance learning.

The Superintendent, Dr. James Sutfin, or his designees, in order to facilitate the ability to
implement action plans and prompt reactions to safely reopen the schools and implement
the educational process while operating within the evolving COVID-19 virus pandemic
and to address the health directives, if any, and avoid unnecessary delays in the
implementation of needed actions to address educational and health needs, is hereby
delegated the authority by this Board of Education to close or limit access or impose
necessary requirements for access to programs, buildings, and schools of the District as
needed or deemed appropriate by the District Administration; to amend, alter, modify
and/or adjust the 2020-2021 school year calendar, and/or the school day schedule, and/or
modify attendance requirements as necessary to protect the educational process and/or
comply with any public health or safety directives; to implement emergency response
action plans in compliance with any health directives; to contract with or provide facilities

3



175



LAUNCH NEBRASKA

Nebraska Department of Education * Effective July 20, 2020

Planning a Safe
Return to School
in Nebraska




177

B

@)

The Nebraska Department of Education would like to thank
the following partners for contributing to this guidance.

NEBRASKA

Good Life. Great Mission.

DEPT, OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

MNebroska Stale Bducebon Assecior
e rmenaig o [0 FaiGOAT

Nebraska Association of
SCHOOL BOARDS

NALHD &

Nebraska Assockation
Local Health Dinuurn

£{d

Nebraska Council
of School Administrators

Disclaimer: The information provided in this and relafed documents does not, and is not intended to, constitute legal ad-
vice. This is intended fo be a guidance document fo support and inform local school districts and school systems and all
information included is for reference only. Because local school board policy and unique facts make dramatic differences
in analyzing any situation, the Nebraska Department of Education and the Nebraska Department of Health and Human Ser-
vices advise each school district or school system to consult with the local school district or system attorney for specific legal
advice regarding the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on school operations. Additionally, the Nebraska Department of
Education and the Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services encourage districts to consult their local health de-
partments fo ensure thaf the health and safety of all students and staff are prioritized while working to provide a high-quality
education to all students. The document contains links to other resources and sites and are provided for convenience only.
The links do not constitute an endorsement. It is likely that evolving circumstances will necessitate changes to this document
and local plans. While this guide is not comprehensive to all needs nor static in nature, it is intended to capture the most

important components necessary for school planning as of the date of release.



178

Introduction

The mission of the Nebraska Department of Education is to lead and support the preparation of all
Nebraskans for learning, earning, and living. As Nebraska schools begin the complicated transition
into the fall, it is critical to address considerations for students and attendance in the fall. The purpose
of this document is to outline protocols schools should consider given their particular level of risk as
defermined by their Local Health Department and/or the Department of Health and Human Services.

Foundational Values

* Equity: We must ensure our students, especially those who have been historically underserved,
maintain access to high quality teaching.

¢ Quality: While flexibility and innovation must be pursued, we must not back down from our
standards for quality.

* Flexibility: We must pursue flexibilities in regulations and innovations to ensure students have
access to high quality teaching.

* Safety: Learning cannot occur if the school community does not feel safe in their environment.

* Decisive: Given the size and scope of the challenge, we must move deliberately and make
tough choices. We will make mistakes, and we will adapt quickly as variables on the ground
change.

Process for Engaging with These
Protocols

Step 1: Analyze Risk:
Work with the Local Health Department to determine level of risk (ex. Green, Yellow/Orange, Red)

Step 2: Identify and Tailor Protocols:
Consider the protocols detailed below.

Step 3: Plan around these protocols using your “Return to School” team:
Planning should occur to consider the potential pivot to remote learning or differentiated levels.

Step 4: Review and Communicate:

Continue conversation with your Local Health Department as they review and approve your plan.
Finally, communicate the steps with all stakeholders including parents and family, community, and
students.

School policies and planning must be flexible and nimble in responding to new information,

and administrators must be willing to refine approaches when specific policies are not working.
Addifionally, the actions and guidelines below acknowledge are intended to mitigate, not eliminate,
risk.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



179

Additional Support

The American Academy of Pediatricians (AAP) provides additional, helpful guidance which starts
with the goal of having students physically present in school, while ensuring safety and providing
age-appropriate guidance. The AAP provides high-priority and lower-priority strategies, which are in
alignment to the guidance below. More information can be found here.

Overview:

Minimal Spread Moderate Significant

Remote
Learning

Reduce
Number of
Students in

Building

“New Normal”

* Enhanced  Face :cvehﬂgf Considerations ¢ Schools return to

screening

At home
screening
procedures
Planning for
responding to
positive cases

 when fecsible®

of alternative
scheduling to
reduce number
of students in
building

Pivot to hyborid
model of
instruction

remote learning
environment
Extracurricular
activities and
athletics
discontinue

All Schools: Enhanced cleaning; increased emphasis on social-emotional supports;
education materials on handwashing, coronavirus, etc.

*CDC recognizes that wearing cloth face coverings may not be possible in every situation or for some people. In some
situations, wearing a cloth face covering may exacerbate a physical or mental health condition, lead to a medical
emergency, or infroduce significant safety concerns. Adaptations and alternatives should be considered whenever possible
to increase the feasibility of wearing a cloth face covering or to reduce the risk of COVID-19 spreading if it is not possible to
wear one. For more information, see CDC “Feasibility and Adaptations” section of Cloth Face Cover Guidance.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



180

Minimal Community Spread (Gr

Scenario 1:

Virus Status * Local Health Departments analyze risk using variables such as number
of positive cases, percent of positive cases, hospitalization rate
(situationally factored in), and the increase in positive cases from
previous rolling averages.

* In this level, few, if any, active COVID-19 cases locally.
¢ Risk level corresponds to late Phase Il or IV of DHMs.

* Future statewide, regional, or local DHMs may necessitate additional
requirements.

How to Keep School » School preparedness activities primarily focused around awareness
Communities Safe and updating emergency operations plans.

* Close and continuing communication between school and local
public health leaders focused on local epidemiology and any
changes in disease surveillance that would necessitate a change to
“minimal fo moderate spread” community spread status.

* Evaluate whether there are students or staff at risk for severe illness
and/or students or staff living with a high-risk individual and develop or
refine plans for remote work and education if necessary.

* Encourage sick students and staff to stay home and consider waiving
requirements for doctor’'s excuse notes.

¢ Clean and disinfect work and school areas regularly (between groups
of students, between school day and after school programs, etc).

* Embed teaching of hygiene practices into regular routines.

School Operating * Open forin-person instruction.
Status

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA ¢ UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



181
Mental and Social Emotional Health

» Assess social-emotional and mental health resources {personnel, existing partners) to
defermine if there is a need for additional external support, and reach out to the existing
mental health provider community to assess the potential for expanded clientele and
services.

» Designate a school-based mental health licison to work with the school district, mental
health providers, local public health agencies, and community partners.

» Establish a mental health crisis response feam that includes school administrators, school
nurses, mental health practitioners, students, and parents, to focus on student and staff
mental health and wellness using frauma informed, evidence-based models.

» Evaluate staff mental health readiness utilizing questionnaires, surveys, screening tools,
and direct outreach. If any screening does occur, it should comply with privacy laws and
requirements.

» Where feasible, institute evidence-based universal mental health screening tools
appropriate for school staff and students in different grades. If any screening does occur, it
should comply with privacy laws and requirements.

» Provide resources for staff self-care, including resiliency strategies.
» Consider additional resources designed for populations with special needs that are
developmentally, culturally, and linguistically appropriate.
Hygiene

» Provide adequate supplies to support healthy hygiene behaviors (e.g. , soap, hand sanitizer
with at least 60% alcohol for safe use by staff and older children, paper towels, and fissues).

» Teach and reinforce handwashing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds and/or the
safe use of hand sanitizer that contains at least 60% alcohol by staff and older students.

» Systematically and frequently check and refill hand sanitizers

» Encourage staff and students to cough and sneeze into their elbows, or to cover with a
tissue. Used tissues should be thrown in the trash and hands washed immediately with
soap and water for at least 20 seconds. If soap and water are not readily available, hand
sanitizer that contains at least 6é0% alcohol can be used (for staff and older children who
can safely use hand sanitizer).

» Limit sharing of personal items and supplies such as writing utensils.

» Keep students’ personal items separate and in individually labeled cubbies, containers or
lockers.

» Limit use of classroom materials o small groups and disinfect between uses or provide
adequate supplies to assign for individual student use.

» Post signs in highly visible locations (e.g., school entrances, restrooms) that promote
everyday protective measures and describe how to stop the spread of germs (such as by
properly washing hands and properly wearing a cloth face covering over the mouth and
nose).

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



182

Spacing, Movement, and Access

»

»

»

»

»

Changes to class sizes and spacing unnecessary; can resume normal seating.
No changes in movement between classes is required.

Parents are not allowed in the school building except under extenuating circumstances
determined by district and school officials; adults entering the building should wash or
sanitize hands prior to entering.

Only one parent per child should be allowed to enter except under extenuating
circumstances determined by district and school officials.

Strict records, including day and time, should be kept of visitors entering and exiting the
building. If resources allow, any visitors should be temperature screened and, ideally, asked
about symptoms, close contact with a known or suspected case, and recent travel history.

Screening Students

»

»

»

»

»

»

Children who become ill af school should be placed in a designated area of quarantine
with a surgical mask in place until parents/guardians arrive. Students should not be placed
in a mask if developmentally unable to remove it.

The preferred PPE for nurses or other health staff who care for the student showing possible
symptoms of COVID-19 or a student who has been potentially exposed to COVID-19 is an
N95 or equivalent or higher-level respirator as well as gown, gloves, and eye protection
{goggles or face shield). Staff should be fit-tested for N95s before use. An acceptable
alternative would be a surgical mask along with gown, gloves, and face shield. (See CDC
Guidance).

Students sent home from school should be kept home until they have completely
recovered according to CDC guidelines or DHM requirements.

Students are allowed to enter the building at only 1-2 sites and must egress from other exits
to keep traffic moving in a single direction.

Parents are encouraged o check student's temperature at home every morning using
oral, tympanic, or temporal scanners; students with a temperature of 100.4 or greater
should stay home and consider coronavirus testing if no other explanation is available.
Consider providing thermometers for families who do not have one and need to monitor
their child's symptoms.

Parents are encouraged to ask their children or monitor for symptoms of COVID-19,
including cough, congestion, shortness of breath, loss of taste or smell, or gastrointestinal
symptoms every morning. The presence of any symptoms should prompt the parent to
keep the student home from school.

If resources allow, temperature checks on students can be performed once per day by
staff, febrile students should be sent to the quarantine area, nurse’'s office, or other area
isolated from other students and staff until safe transport home by parents/guardians.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



183
Testing Protocols for Students and Responding to Positive Cases

» Establish procedures for safely transporting anyone who is sick to their home or to a
healthcare facility.

» Parents should be notified of the presence of any posifive cases in the classroom and/or
school to encourage closer observation for any symptoms at home.

» Students sent home from school should be kept home until they have completely
recovered according to CDC guidelines. Consider providing thermometers for families who
do not have one and need to monitor their child’'s symptoms.

» Inthe event that a student tests positive, schools should immediately call their Local
Health Department to report it, and work with them to contact any close contacts (those
who spent more than 15 minutes in close proximity to the student) so that they can be
guarantined at home. Classmates should be closely monitored for any symptoms. At
this time, empiric testing of all students in the class is not recommended, only those that
develop symptoms require testing.

Responding to Positive Tests Among Staff and Students

» Inthe event of a positive test among staff or a student, the classroom or areas exposed
should be closed until cleaning and disinfection can be performed.

o If the person was in the school building without a facial covering, or large areas of the
school were exposed to the person, short ferm dismissals (2-5 days) may be required to
clean and disinfect the larger areas. This decision shouid be made in concert with the
Local Health Department.

o If possible, smaller areas should be closed for 24 hours before cleaning to minimize the
risk of any airborne particles.

» The preferred PPE for staff cleaning after a confirmed COVID-19 is an N95 or equivalent
or higher-level respirator as well as gown, gloves, and eye protection {goggles or face
shield). Staff should be fit-tested for N95s before use. An acceptable alternative would be
a surgical mask along with gown, gloves, and face shield. (See CDC Guidance). Ensure
proper and adequate ventilation after cleaning and before returning students to the area.

Dining, Gathering, Athletics, and Extracurricular Activities
» Meal activities contfinue per normal operating procedures.

» Require students, feachers, and cafeteria staff to wash hands before and after every
meal. If soap and water are not readily available, hand sanitizer that contains at least 60%
alcohol can be used (for staff and older children who can safely use hand sanitizer).

» When possible, students and teachers wash hands before and after every event (eg.
assemblies, games, plays, efc).

» Large scale gatherings are allowed per normal operating status.
» Extracurricular activities and gatherings conducted normally.

» After school programs are open and operating normally.

» All activities are allowed to continue per normal procedures.

» Spectator events are allowed per normal procedures.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



184

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

» Staff that may be in contact with a student with suspected COVID-19 or cleaning after a

confirmed COVID-19 case should be provided with PPE, trained on when and what PPE
is necessary, how to don (put on) and doff (take off) PPE, limitations of PPE, and proper
care, maintenance, and disposal of PPE.

» Cloth face coverings are not required for staff or students.

»

o However, CDC recommends that face coverings should be worn by staff and students
(particularly older students) as feasible, and are most essential in times when physical
distancing is difficult, so schools may also choose to recommend doing so.

o Face coverings should be worn over the nose and mouth.

o One circumstance where distancing cannot be maintained is annual school health
screening. Schools should consider having students who are able to wear cloth face
coverings do so during the brief fime needed for screening.

o PPE {facemasks, eye protection, gloves) should be worn by staff responsible for
delivering direct personal care where physical distancing cannot be maintained.
Such staff may include, but is not limited fo Health Office staff, health support staff,
and special education staff who have close contact with students (within 6 ft.).

Regular use of hand sanitizer and hand washing is encouraged.

Cleaning

»

»

»

»

»

School campuses should undergo normal cleaning on a daily basis.

Strongly recommended that frequently touched surfaces including lights, doors, benches,
bathrooms, etc. should undergo cleaning with either an EPA-approved disinfectant or
dilute bleach solution (1/3 cup bleach in 1 gallon of water) at least twice daily.

Libraries, computer labs, arts, and other hands-on classrooms should undergo standard
cleaning procedures per normal operating status.

Strongly suggested that student desks should be wiped down with either an EPA-approved
disinfectant or dilute bleach solution at the beginning and end of every day.

Strongly suggested that playground equipment and athletic equipment can be cleaned
with either an EPA-approved disinfectant or dilute bleach solution twice daily.

Strongly suggested that staff should wear gloves, surgical mask, and face shield when
performing all cleaning activities.

o Store and use cleaning supplies out of the reach of children.

Busing and Student Transportation

» School busing operations proceed normally.

»

No changes to schedules or seating patterns on the buses are required.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA » UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



185
Medically Vulnerable Students and Teachers

» Systematically review all current plans (e.g., Individual Healthcare Plans, Individualized
Education Plans or 504 plans) for accommodating students with special healthcare needs
and update their care plans as needed to decrease their risk for COVID-19.

» Create a process for students/families and staff to self-identify as high risk for severe iliness
due to COVID-19 and have a plan in place to address requests for alternative learning
arrangements or work re-assignments.

» Enable staff that self-identify as high risk for severe illness to minimize face-to-face contact
and to allow them to maintain a distance of 6 feet from others, modify job responsibilities
that limit exposure risk, or fo telework if possible.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



Scenario 2:

Minimal to Moderate Local Community

Virus Status

* Local Health Departments analyze risk using variables such as
number of positive cases, percent of positive cases, hospitalization
rate (situationally factored in), and the increase in positive cases
from previous rolling averages.

* Movement from Red to Orange/Yellow: Similar to movement from
DHM Phase | to Phase I

* Movement from Green to Orange/Yellow: Similar to movement from
DHM Phase 1ll/IV to Phase |I

¢ Risk level corresponds to Phase Il and lil of Nebraska Directed Health
Measures.

* Robust testing, contact fracing, and containment protocols in place.

* Need for contfinued physical distancing, use of facial coverings, and
mitigation in school and workplace settings.

¢ Gathering sizes limited to small numbers.

How to Keep School
Communities Safe

* School preparedness and response activities shift from ongoing
surveillance to a series of active mitigation measures.

 Allstaff and students should wear facing coverings when feasible.

* Schools should be prepared to immediately implement physical
distancing measures that include:

» Reducing the frequency of large gatherings,
» Altering schedules,
* Limiting inter-school interactions, and
* Deploying remote learning.

¢ Short-term dismissals of 2-5 days and suspension of extracurricular
activities should be expected for cleaning and contact tracing
purposes

» Students and teachers at increased risk of severe illness should
be prepared to implement distance teaching and learning
modalities.

School Operating
Status

» Situationally dependent

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020




10

187

Mental and Social Emotional Health

»

»

»

»

»

»

Assess social-emotional and mental health resources (personnel, existing partners) fo
determine if there is a need for additional external support, and reach out to the existing
mental health provider community to assess the potential for expanded clientele and
services.

Designate a school-based mental health licison to work with the school district, mental
health providers, local public health agencies, and community partners.

Establish a mental health crisis response team that includes school administrators, school
nurses, mental health practitioners, students, and parents, to focus on student and staff
mental health and wellness using tfrauma informed, evidence-based models.

Evaluate staff mental health readiness utilizing questionnaires, surveys, screening tools,
and direct outreach. If any screening does occur, it should comply with privacy laws and
requirements.

Where feasible, institute evidence-based universal mental health screening tools
appropriate for school staff and students in different grades. If any screening does occur, it
should comply with privacy laws and requirements.

Provide resources for staff self-care, including resiliency strategies.

Consider additional resources designed for populations with special needs that are
developmentally, culturally, and linguistically appropriate.

Hygiene

»

»

»

»

»

»

Provide adequate supplies to support healthy hygiene behaviors (e.g. ., soap, hand sanitizer
with at least 60% alcohol for safe use by staff and older children, paper towels, and tissues).

Teach and reinforce handwashing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds or the safe
use of hand sanitizer that contains at least 60% alcohol by staff and older students.

Systematically and frequently check and refill hand sanitizers

Encourage staff and students to cough and sneeze into their elbows, or to cover with a
tissue. Used tissues should be thrown in the trash and hands washed immediately with
soap and water for at least 20 seconds. If soap and water are not readily available, hand
sanitizer that contains at least 60% alcohol can be used (for staff and older children who
can safely use hand sanitizer).

Limit sharing of personal items and supplies such as writing utensils.

Keep students' personal items separate and in individually labeled cubbies, containers or
lockers.

Limit use of classroom materials to small groups and disinfect between uses or provide
adequate supplies to assign for individual student use.

Post signs in highly visible locations (e.g., school entrances, restrooms) that promote
everyday protective measures and describe how to stop the spread of germs (such as by
properly washing hands and properly wearing a cloth face covering over the mouth and
nose).

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA » UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



188

Spacing, Movement, and Access

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

Spacing is six feet between desks. If not possible, consider another physical barrier such as
plexiglass partitions or cardboard dividers.

At the Orange level, consider alternative schedules resulting in a hybrid instruction model
(ex. half days or A/B days, 3/2 days etc).

In early grades, K-2, where tables are utilized, recommend spacing students as far apart as
feasible.

Arrange all desks facing the same direction toward the front of the classroom.

Encourage outdoor lessons, when weather permits and students are able to maintain
distancing.

Class sizes should be kept to 20 students or fewer (as afforded by necessary spacing
requirements and personnel).

o If all students cannot fit in the classroom space available, it is recommended that a
staggered school schedule that incorporates alternative dates of attendance or use of
virtual teaching be implemented.

Teachers should try fo maintain six feet of spacing between themselves and students as
much as possible.

Assemblies of more than 50 students at a time are discouraged but allowed as long as
facial coverings remain in use and é-foot distancing implemented.

At the Orange level, large scale assemblies of more than 50 students should be
discontinued.

Facial coverings should be worn at all times in hallways for grades K-12, as feasible or
folerated and/or most essential in times where physical distancing is difficult. Any one that
has frouble breathing or is unconscious should not wear a facial covering. Any one that is
incapacitated or unable to remove the facial covering without assistance, should not wear
a facial covering.

Staff should continuously wear face coverings as feasible while indoors, except when
eating orin closed-door environments (e.g. their empty classroom).

Classroom windows should be open as much as possible and conditions allow.

Consider having cohorts of students that stay in the same class, eat lunch together, break
together, and arrive/leave at the same time. For upper classes, have teachers rotate/
move rooms rather than students, as much as possible.

As able, schools should try to cohort groups of students to isolated hallways or areas that
can be monitored if there is a COVID-19 exposure.

As able, specialists from laboratories, libraries, and other specialized services or locations
should be brought to the classrooms instead of having students transit to those locations.

Flow of foot fraffic should be directed in only one direction, if possible.

o Ifone way flow is not possible, hallways can be divided with either side following the
same direction.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020

11



189
» Efforts should be made to keep six feet of distance between persons in the hallways.

» Staggered movements at incremental intervals should be used if feasible to minimize the
number of persons in the hallways as able.

» Floor tape or other markers should be used at six foot intervals where line formation is
anficipated.

» Provide physical distancing floor/seating markings in waiting and reception areas

» Mark six feet of spacing to remind students and staff to always stay six feet apart in lines
and at other fimes when they may congregate

» Have staff monitor arrival and dismissal to discourage congregating outside the building.

» Parents are not allowed in the school building except under extenuating circumstances
determined by district and school officials; adults entering the building should wash or
sanitize hands prior to entering.

» Only one parent per child should be allowed to enter except under extenuating
circumstances determined by district and school officials.

» Strict records, including day and time, should be kept of visitors entering and exiting the
building. If resources allow, any visitors should be temperature screened and, ideally,
asked about symptoms, close confact with a known or suspected case, and recent travel
history

Screening Students

» Children who become ill at school should be placed in a designated area of quarantine
with a surgical mask covering mouth and nose until parents/guardians arrive. Students
should not be placed in a mask if developmentally unable to remove it.

o Larger schools that may have many students per day going to the nurse's office may
have to consider entire rooms with privacy curtains or some other barriers.

o The preferred PPE for nurses or other health staff who care for a student with suspected
or confirmed COVID-19 is an N95 or equivalent or higher-level respirator as well as
gown, gloves, and eye protection {goggles or face shield). An acceptable alternative
would be a surgical mask along with gown, gloves, and face shield. (See CDC
Guidance)

» Students sent home from school should be kept home until they have completely
recovered according to CDC guidelines.

» Students are allowed fo enter the building at only 1-2 sites and must egress from other exits
to keep traffic moving in a single direction.

» Parents are encouraged to check student’s temperature at home every morning using
oral, tympanic, or femporal scanners; students with a temperature of 100.4 or greater
should stay home and consider coronavirus testing if no other explanation is available.
Consider providing thermometers for families who do not have one and need to monitor
their child's symptoms.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



»

»

»

»

»

»

»

190
Parents are encouraged to ask their children or monitor for symptoms of COVID-19,
including cough, congestion, shortness of breath, loss of taste or smell, or gastrointestinal
symptoms every morming. The presence of any symptoms should prompt the parent to
keep the student home from school.

If resources allow, temperature checks on students can be performed once per day by
staff; febrile students should be sent to the quarantine area, nurse's office, or other area
isolated from other students and staff until safe transport home by parents/guardians.

Testing Protocols for Students and Responding to Positive Cases

Establish procedures for safely transporting anyone who is sick to their home or to a
healthcare facility.

Parents should be nofified of the presence of any positive cases in the classroom and/or
school to encourage closer observation for any symptoms at home.

Students sent home from school should be kept home until they have completely
recovered according to CDC guidelines.

In the event that a student tests positive, schools should immediately call their Local Health
Department to report it. Additionally, Local Health Departments should report to the school
if a student fests positive and work with them to notify any close contacts (those who spent
more than 15 minutes in close proximity to the student) so that they can be quarantined

at home. Classmates should be closely monitored for any symptoms. At this time, empiric
testing of all students in the class is not recommended, only those that develop symptoms
require testing.

Responding to Positive Tests Among Staff and Students

»

»

In the event of a positive test among staff or a student, the classroom or areqas exposed
should be closed until cleaning and disinfection can be performed.

o If the person was in the school building without a facial covering, or large areas of the
school were exposed fo the person, short term dismissals (2-5 days) may be required to
clean and disinfect the larger areas. This decision should be made in concert with the
local public health department.

If possible, smaller areas should be closed for 24 hours before cleaning to minimize the risk
of any airborne particles.

The preferred PPE for staff cleaning after a confirmed COVID-19 is an N95 or equivalent

or higher-level respirator as well as gown, gloves, and eye protection {goggles or face
shield). Staff should be fit-tested for N95s before use. An acceptable alternative would be
a surgical mask along with gown, gloves, and face shield. (See CDC Guidance). Ensure
proper and adeguate ventilation after cleaning and before returning students to the area.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020

13



14

191

Dining, Gathering, and Extracurricular Activities

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

Students, teachers, and cafeteria staff wash hands before and after every meal.

If possible, school supplied meals should be delivered to classrooms with disposable utensils,
and classrooms should be utilized for eating in place, taking into consideration food
allergies.

If cafeterias need to be used, meal times must be staggered to create seating
arrangements with six feet of distance between students.

o Disposable utensils should be employed.

o Serving and cafeteria staff should use barrier protection including gloves, face shields,
and surgical masks; N?5 respirators are not required.

Assemblies of up to 50 students at a time are discouraged but allowed as long as facial
coverings remain in use.

Outside guests are not adllowed to attend.

Large scale assemblies of more than 50 students should be discontinued.
Off-site field trips discontinued.

For assemblies, schools should consider offering telecasting of events if able.

Students and teachers wash hands before and after every event {ex. assemblies, games,
plays).
After school programs may continue with the use of facial coverings.

Additional guidance will be provided for programs and classes which pose higher risk due
to potential for increased droplet/aerosol spread (i.e. band/choir).

Athletics and Extracurricular Activities

Students, teachers, and staff should wash hands before and after every practice, event, or
other gathering.

Each district should develop a procedure and appoint a responsible person (Ex. AD or
coach) for every participant to confirm that they are healthy and without any symptoms
prior to any event.

All equipment should be disinfected before and after use.

Schools should follow guidance from the Nebraska High School Athletics Association and
local public health departments when deciding which sports can be safely conducted
and with any restrictions required.

o Spectators are allowed provided that facial coverings are used by observers at all
times and physical distancing is maintained.

Weight room and physical conditioning activities should follow guidance from the
Nebraska High School Athletics Association.

At the Orange level, sports that do not allow adequate distancing such as football,
wrestling, basketball, etc. should be discontinued.

Large scale spectator or stadium events are not allowed.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



192
Locker rooms and group changing areas should be closed.
Handshakes, fist bumps, and other unnecessary contact should be minimized.

Any uniforms or other clothing that need to be washed/laundered at school can be
washed in warm water with regular detergent. These should be single use without sharing
of ice, fowels, or other materials.

Each participant should use a clearly marked water bottle for individual use. There should
be no sharing of this equipment.

Personal Protective Equipment

»

»

All staff and students should wear facing coverings when feasible; facial coverings may
be homemade or disposable. Any one that has trouble breathing or is unconscious should
not wear a facial covering. Any one that is incapacitated or unable to remove the facial
covering without assistance, should not wear a facial covering.

PPE (facemasks, eye protection, gloves) should be worn by staff responsible for delivering
direct personal care where physical distancing cannot be maintained. Such staff may
include, but is not limited to Health Office staff, health support staff, and special education
staff who have close contact with students (within 6 ft.).

Gowns, hair coverings, and shoe covers are not required.

Staff that may be in contact with a student with suspected COVID-19 or cleaning after a
confirmed COVID-19 case should be provided with PPE, trained on when and what PPE
is necessary, how to don (put on} and doff (take off} PPE, limitations of PPE, and proper
care, maintenance, and disposal of PPE.

Cleaning

»

»

»

»

»

Frequently touched surfaces including lights, doors, benches, bathrooms, etc. should
undergo cleaning with either an EPA-approved disinfectant or dilute bleach solution
should now be cleaned every two-four hours.

Libraries, computer labs, arts, and other hands on classrooms should undergo cleaning
with either an EPA-approved disinfectant or dilute bleach solution should now be cleaned
after every class period. Efforts should be made to minimize sharing of materials between
students as able.

Student desks should be wiped down with either an EPA-approved disinfectant or dilute
bleach solution after every class period.

Playground equipment should be cleaned twice daily, athletic equipment should be
cleaned and disinfected with an EPA-approved disinfectant or dilute bleach solution
twice daily.

Staff should wear gloves, surgical mask, and face shield when performing all cleaning
activities. Ensure proper and adequate ventilation after cleaning and before returning
students to the area.

Store and use cleaning supplies out of the reach of children.

Busing and Student Transportation

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA « UPDATED JULY 20, 2020

15



16

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

193

Clean and disinfect transportation vehicles regularly. Children must not be present when a
vehicle is being cleaned.

Ensure safe and correct use and storage of cleaning and disinfection products, including
storing products securely away from children and adequate ventilation when staff use such
products. Ensure proper and adequate ventilation after cleaning and before returning
students to the area.

Clean and disinfect frequently touched surfaces in the vehicle (eg. surfaces in the driver's
cockpit, hard seats, arm rests, door handles, seat belt buckles, light and air controls, doors
and windows, and grab handles) prior to morning routes and prior to afternoon routes.

Keep doors and windows open when cleaning the vehicle and between trips to let the
vehicles thoroughly air out.

Clean, sanitize, and disinfect equipment including items such as car seats and seat belts,
wheelchairs, walkers, and adaptive equipment being transported to schools.

Create a policy that if an individual becomes sick during the day, they must not use group
transportation to return home and must follow protocols outlined above.

Create a plan for getting students home safely if they are not allowed to board the
vehicle.

If a driver becomes sick during the day, they must follow protocols for sick staff above and
must not return to drive students.

Encourage the use of hand sanitizer before entering the bus. Where possible, hand sanitizer
should be supplied on the bus.

Where possible, allow for six feet of physical distancing between students, and between
students and the driver, while seated on vehicles if feasible (e.g., by utilizing larger vehicles
with more seats, by increasing frequency of routes to reduce occupancy, one rider per
seat in every other row)

Consider keeping windows open while the vehicle is in motion to help reduce spread of the
virus by increasing air circulation, if appropriate and safe.

Medically Vulnerable Students and Staff

»

»

Systematically review all current plans (e.g., Individual Healthcare Plans, Individualized
Education Plans or 504 plans) for accommodating students with special healthcare needs
and update their care plans as needed to decrease their risk for exposure to COVID-19.

Create a process for students/families and staff to self-identify as high risk for severe illness
due to COVID-19 and have a plan in place to address requests for alternative learning
arrangements or work re-assignments.

Enable staff that self-identify as high risk for severe illness to minimize face-to-face contact
and to allow them to maintain a distance of 6 feet from others, modify job responsibilities
that limit exposure risk, or to telework if possible.

PLANNING A SAFE RETURN TO SCHOOL IN NEBRASKA » UPDATED JULY 20, 2020



Scenario 3: Significant Community S,

read (Red)

Virus Status

»

»

Local Health Departments analyze risk using variables such as
number of positive cases, percent of positive cases, hospitalization
rate (situationally factored in), and the increase in positive cases
from previous rolling averages.

Risk level corresponds to Phase | of Nebraska Directed Health
Measures.

High, uncontrolled community prevalence rate.

How to Keep School
Communities Safe

»

Nebraska leaders have decided to return to Phase One of the
Directed Health Measures for the county/region or have ordered
a complete shutdown of the state.

School preparedness and response activities shift from an ongoing
surveillance footing to a series of active mitigation measures.

Schools should be closed for all in-house activities for an extended
period of time

School Operating
Status

»

Schools are closed for in-person instruction. Remote learning
initiated.




195
Mental and Social-Emotional Health

» Since learning is remote, schools should consider innovative ways to ensure the social-
emotional and mental health supports for students and staff. Refer to the Conditions for
Learning page on Launch NE for further resources and support.

Spacing and Movement

» Schools are closed for in-person instruction and will implement a remote learning plan.

Screening Students

» Schools are closed for in-person instruction.

Dining, Gathering, and Extracurricular Activities

» Schools enact off site food programs.

Athletics and Extracurricular Activities

» All athletics and extracurriculars are suspended.

Personal Protective Equipment and Hygiene

» Schools are closed for in-person instruction.

Cleaning

» Schools are closed and cleaning practices adjusted to maintain school buildings in clean
and well functioning order.

Busing and Student Transportation

» All busing operations are suspended.

Medically Vulnerable Students and Teachers

» All teaching should be moved to video conferencing platforms.



LAUNCH
' NEBRASKA

LrLIuJ?:[ .. T |I;;
h ~
www.launchne. comaﬁ' Gl G s n ¥




197

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: 2021-22 Within District Transfer and Option Enrollment Capacity Standards

Meeting Date: December 7, 2020

Background/

Description: Based on current and predicted enrollments the recommendation to the
Board is to open all elementary and secondary schools to both within district
transfer and option enrollment until capacity limits are met.

Action Desired: Approval

Policy /

Strategic Plan

Reference: N/A

Responsible Person(s): Bill Jelkin, Director of Student Services

Superintendent’s Signature:

s



Agenda Item:

Meeting Date:

Background:

Description:

Action Desired:

Policy /

Strategic Plan Reference:

Responsible Person(s):

198

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Human Resources

December 7, 2020

Personnel Items: (1) Resignation Notification Incentive;
(2) Voluntary Separation Program; (3) Resignation
Agenda

Approval

N/A

Dr. Kevin Chick
Associate Superintendent of Human Resources

S intendent’s Signature: 7/n =/
uperintendent’s Signature / 4%



199

December 7, 2020

Resignation Notification Incentive

Recommend: The following resignations be approved to participate in the District’s

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35

36.

Resignation Notification Incentive Program:

Tina M. Elyea — Special Education teacher at Kiewit Middle School. Retiring at the end
of the 2020-2021 school year.

Sally A. Daily — Kindergarten teacher at Black Elk Elementary School. Retiring at the
end of the 2020-2021 school year.

Carole J. Backhuus — Grade 4 teacher at Aldrich Elementary School. Retiring at the end
of the 2020-2021 school year.

Dallas C. Wellensiek — Grade 2 teacher at Abbott Elementary School. Retiring at the end
of the 2020-2021 school year.

Bonnie K. Levenger — Speech Pathologist at Neihardt Elementary School. Retiring at the
end of the 2020-2021 school year.

Allyson L Olsen — Grade 1 teacher at Rockwell Elementary School. Resigning to take a
CADRE position with Millard Public Schools at the end of the 2020-2021 school year.
Stephen J. Lerner — Science teacher at Millard North High School. Resigning at the end
of the 2020-2021 school year for a job outside of education.

Bailey A. Timmons — Grade 4 teacher at Wheeler Elementary School. Resigning to take
a CADRE positon with Millard Public Schools at the end of the 2020-2021 school year.

. Aarron W. Schurevich -- Language Arts teacher at Millard North High School. Resigning

at the end of the 2020-2021 school year for personal reasons.
Dorothy M. Harman — Montessori Preprimary teacher at Montclair Elementary School.
Retiring at the end of the 2020-2021 school year.



Recommend:

10.

11.

12.

200

December 7, 2020

Voluntary Separation Program (VSP)

The following qualified candidates be approved to participate in the District’s
Voluntary Separation Program.

. Vickie A. Wiedenhamer — Language Arts teacher at Millard South High School

~ 29.7 years of service

Nancy J. Haith — Special Education Resource teacher at Beadle Middle School
~ 29.5 years of service

Julia L. Hobbs — Family Consumer Science teacher at Andersen Middle School
~ 21 years of service

Sally A. Daily — Kindergarten teacher at Black Elk Elementary School

~ 23 years of service

Debra K. Fox — Science teacher at Russell Middle School

~ 21.4 years of service

Kelly A. Miller — Grade 1 teacher at Wheeler Elementary School

~ 32 years of service

Kathleen M. Guinan — HAL Facilitator at Central Middle School

~ 22.5 years of service

Carol M. West — Speech Language Pathologist at Cottonwood Elementary School
~ 24 years of service

Beth L. Hemphill — Grade 6 teacher at Russell Middle School

~ 27 years of service

Carole J. Backhuus — Grade 4 teacher at Aldrich Elementary School

~ 35.5 years of service

Linda P. Brewer — Counselor at Millard West High School

~ 20.5 years of service

Dorothy M. Harman — Montessori Preprimary teacher at Montclair Elementary
~ 22.5 years of service



201

December 7, 2020

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: The following resignation(s) be accepted:

1. Estefania Larsen — Science teacher at Millard South High School. Resigning effective
immediately for personal reasons.



202

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: 2020-21 Open, Option, & Transfer Enrollment Report

Meeting Date: December 7, 2020

Background/

Description: This reports provides a current snap shot for all school enrollments to
include the number of open enrolled, option enrolled and student attending
on a within district transfer.

Action Desired: Information Only

Policy /

Strategic Plan

Reference: N/A

Responsible Person(s): Bill Jelkin, Director of Student Services

Superintendent’s Signature:

s



Enroliment, Transfers, Open/Option In as of 11/27/2018

203

School Enroliment Transfers Open In Option In
Abbott Elementary 450 42 103 64
Ackerman Elementary 514 102 12 24
Aldrich Elementary 462 130 45 32
Black Elk Elementary 565 95 6 8
Bryan Elementary 347 50 8 27
Cather Elementary 402 191 41 66
Cody Elementary 227 38 23 36
Cottonwood Elementary 318 27 21 24
Disney Elementary 361 53 26 23
Ezra Millard Elementary 468 17 145 100
Harvey Oaks Elementary 282 43 17 6
Hitchcock Elementary 264 70 18 22
Holling Heights Elementary 360 59 11 6
Montclair Elementary 584 289 52 61
Morton Elementary 297 29 9 10
Neihardt Elementary 577 85 12 5
Norris Elementary 342 131 24 30
Reagan Elementary 570 13 1 1
Reeder Elementary 580 10 1
Rockwell Elementary 255 51 4 4
Rohwer Elementary 510 36 2
Sandoz Elementary 326 93 20 11
Upchurch Elementary 474 9 2 2
Wheeler Elementary 544 30 3
Willowdale Elementary 461 72 6 6
Andersen MS 941 216 11 28
Beadle MS 951 60 7
Kiewit MS 965 122 87 221
Millard Central MS 839 136 25 74
Millard North MS 789 255 55 138
Russell MS 769 247 1 16
Millard North HS 2482 449 224 582
Millard South HS 2387 436 81 202
Millard West HS 2390 253 4 38
Millard Horizon HS 138 17 18 12
Totals 23191 3956 1113 1891




204

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET
AGENDA ITEM: Advanced Placement Program Report
MEETING DATE: December 7, 2020
BACKGROUND/
DESCRIPTION: Supporting data indicates that the Advanced Placement culture continues to
serve many of our high school students.

e There are several celebrations in the data from 2019-2020. The number of
students enrolled in an AP course increased by 237 students. The number
of students who took more than one AP course increased by 169 students.

e The COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent disruption to the spring semester
impacted the total number of Advanced Placement exams taken in the
2019-2020 school year. The number of students taking an AP Exam
decreased by 436 students, and the number of exams completed decreased
by 1050.

e The number of AP Scholars remained strong with 443 students named as
scholars as a result of 2019-2020 testing. Included in the 443 AP Scholars,
134 students received AP Scholars with Distinction.

e The financial support provided by the Millard Public Schools Foundation
continued to assist in the exam costs taken during the 2019-2020 school year.

e The cost of taking an AP exam in 2019 was $94.00. Beginning with the
2011-2012 school year, the Foundation has paid for all AP exams not
funded through UNO Dual Enrollment course registration.

e Beginning with the 2016-2017 year, the Foundation no longer funds AP
Exams for courses that we do not offer or for courses in which a student is
not enrolled.

e Beginning in 2020-2021, there will be a cost-sharing plan for AP Exams.
Students will pay $40 of the cost of the exam ($95).

ACTION DESIRED: Information Only
POLICY/
STRATEGIC PLAN: The 2004 Strategic Plan established action plans calling for the creation of an

AP culture The 2009 Strategic Plan called to support promoting personal

excellence, increasing student achievement, and engaging students. In the 2018

Strategic Plan the parameter “We will always expect each student to set and

achieve challenging educational and career goals tailored to his/her abilities,

interests, and aspirations.” was added to emphasize this continued focus. This
report is one way we measure our Strategic Objective: The percentage of
students participating in and performing at high levels on measures of national
and/or international educational excellence will increase annually.
RESPONSIBLE
PERSONS: Dr. Heather Phipps, Dr. Anthony Weers, and Dr. Melanie Olson
SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

o Lt



205

Points of Interest

The COVID-19 pandemic impacted Advanced Placement testing in the spring of 2020. The exams were
still given although in a modified fashion. The tests were taken by students in their homes and completed
all online directly through the College Board. Many of the tests were altered in format also with
reductions in number of questions and types of questions.

Although the total number of tests taken in Millard decreased significantly, students that did take the tests
still performed well. Over seventeen hundred students chose to challenge themselves by taking 2857 tests
with 63% of the tests scoring in the 3, 4, or 5 range. Millard students accounted for 21% of the total
Advanced Placement tests taken in the state of Nebraska and 443 students were recognized as College
Board Scholars.

Number of AP Exams taken in Millard

North High School [South High School | West High School District Totals

17-18 | 18-19 (19-20 (17-18|18-19 (19-20 |17-18 [18-19|19-20 | 17-18 |18-19 |19-20

Course
Completion 1486 | 1549 [ 1688 | 1381 [ 1499 | 1549 | 1555 | 1425 | 1473 | 4422 | 4473 | 4710

Test
Enrollment* 1499 | 1512 | 1342 |1248 (1329 [ 798 | 1265 | 1017 | 704 | 4012 | 3858 |2844

No Course Test

Enrollment** 8 21 6 25 20 6 3 8 1 36 49 13
Total Tests
Taken 1507 | 1533 (1348 [1273 (1349 | 804 | 1268 | 1025 | 705 4048 |3907 | 2857

*  Number of tests taken for courses offered in Millard. Students may take an AP Exam without enrolling in the
corresponding course.
**  Number of tests for which no AP course is offered in Millard, not included in the Test Enrollment counts.

Advanced Placement Strategy & Action Plans

The 2004 Strategic Plan established action plans that were activated in 2005 calling for the creation of
an AP culture, providing systematic training and support for AP teachers, and ensuring the AP
curriculum for AP courses is aligned with College Board standards for Advanced Placement exams.

The 2009 Strategic Plan including Strategy 2, Action Plan 3 call to actively engage students, families and
staff to improve student achievement and attain personal excellence, and Strategy 4, Action Plan 4 to
utilize instructional best practices, formative and summative assessments, and student data designed to
ensure high achievement for all students and all demographic subgroups, which both support promoting
personal excellence, increasing student achievement, and engaging students. Advanced Placement”
courses provide the opportunity for students to achieve personal excellence by engaging in rigorous
courses. Inthe 2018 Strategic Plan the parameter “We will always expect each student to set and achieve
challenging educational and career goals tailored to his/her abilities, interests, and aspirations.” was added
to emphasize this continued focus.



206
Advanced Placement® Courses

Advanced Placement” Courses follow the curriculum recommendations of the College Board. The course
and corresponding exam provide for a rigorous, fast paced, college level class. During the 2019-2020
school year, Millard offered 26 Advanced Placement” courses. Courses are listed below with the number
of exams taken.

Environmental Science: 22
Physics 1: Algebra-Based: 11
Physics 2: Algebra-Based: 37
United States Govt. & Politics: 128
World History: 399

United States History: 338
European History: 14

Psychology: 106

Human Geography: 402
Macroeconomics: 27

English Language & Composition: 346
English Literature & Composition: 142
German Language: 13

French Language: 18

Spanish Language: 85

Computer Science Principles: 41

Latin Vergil: 10

Statistics: 182

Calculus AB: 129

Calculus BC: 97

Computer Science A: 25

Chemistry: 48

Comparative Govt. & Politics: 5
Biology: 72

Microeconomics: 27
Music Theory: 18

Students may elect to take exams even though the District does not provide a corresponding course.
Thirteen non-course exams were completed by Millard students during 2019-2020.

Examples this past year included: Chinese Language and Culture (2), Physics C: Electricity and
Magnetism (4), Physics C: Mechanics (4), Italian (1), and Spanish Literature (1), Japanese (1).

Student Course and Test Enrollment

Overall, there has been an increase in completion of Advanced Placement” classes since the AP Plan
was implemented. AP course enrollment increased by 237 while exam completion decreased by 1050
in the 2019-2020 COVID-19 impacted school year as noted in the chart below. The focus of testing is
to provide students the opportunity to take a national test, which is utilized as a measure to predict
success in college. Students may compare their test results with students nationally who are taking the
same exam.

The chart below shows the number of students as a district who completed AP courses compared to the
number of exams taken as a result of participation in the provided courses.

Number of AP Courses Completed vs. Number of AP Exams Completed
2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020
Number of AP Courses 4422 4473 4710
Completed
Number of AP Exams 4048 3907 2857
Completed




207

During the 2019-2020 school year, 1779 students took 2857 AP Exams. This represents a decrease of
436 students and a decrease of 1050 exams from the 2018-2019 school year. The number of students
taking one or more AP course increased by 169 students from the previous year. The chart below shows
the number of students who took an AP course and the number of students who took an AP Exam in the
17-18, 18-19. and 19-20 school years.

Number of Students Taking AP Courses and AP Exams

2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020
NHS [SHS|WHS | Dist |NHS | SHS | WHS | Dist |NHS [ SHS |WHS | Dist
# of students taking
one or more AP course | 847| 760| 8482455 904| 799| 8282531 994| 843| 863| 2700
# of students taking
one or more AP Exam (804 (698 [702 2204 | 843| 729| 643]|2215| 800| 493| 486| 1779

Test Scores

Advanced Placement® Examination grades are reported on a five-point scale as follows:

5 = Extremely well qualified;
4 = Well qualified;

3 = Qualified;

2 = Possibly qualified;
1 = No recommendation

These grade categories are designed to reflect achievement scores in the AP course that is analogous to
performance in a comparable college course. 63% percent of the exams taken by Millard students had a
score of 3, 4 or 5 in 2019-2020 compared with 59% in 2018-2019.

Comparison of Local, State, and Global Percentages of Exams Earning 3, 4, 5

2018-2019 2019-2020
Local State Global Local State Global
Percent of Exams 59% 57% 62% 63% 62% 66%
Earning 3, 4, 5
AP Scholars

The College Board recognizes students who have distinguished themselves academically by
announcing AP award recipients.

® AP Scholars = Scores of 3 or higher on 3 or more AP exams (full year courses)
e AP Scholars with Honors = Average score of 3.25 or higher on all AP exams taken and scores of
3 or higher on 4 or more exams (full year courses)
o AP Scholars with Distinction = Average score of 3.5 on all AP exams taken and scores of 3 or
higher on 5 or more exams (full year courses)



208

Number of Millard Students Recognized as College Board Scholars

10-11 11-12

12-13 13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

254 296

347 348

395

477

479

534

527

443

Included in the 443 scholars for the district were 107 students recognized as AP Scholars with Honors
and 134 students achieved AP Scholars with Distinction.

The College Board designates National AP Scholars to students who receive an average score of at least
4 on all AP Exams taken, and scores of 4 or higher in eight or more of these exams. This past year,
NHS had eleven, WHS had one, and SHS had two for a district total of fourteen.

MPS Foundation Advanced Placement® Support

As the number of Millard students taking AP Exams has increased over the years, a greater need for

financial support has continued. The financial support provided by the Millard Public Schools
Foundation continued to assist in paying for exams taken during the 2019-2020 school year. The cost of
taking an AP exam in 2019-2020 was $94.00. Beginning with the 2011-2012 school year, the Foundation

paid for all AP exams for which students completed a class and were not funded through UNO Dual

Enrollment course registration.

Amount Funded Number of Exams Number of Students

2019-2020 $271,921.00 *E *x

2018-2019 $344,738.00 3807 2356
2017-2018 $362,088.00 3852 1982
2016-2017 $ 342,891.00 3687 2013
2015-2016 $ 328,000.00 3604 of 3701* 2321
2014-2015 $ 328,965.00 3615 2073
2013-2014 $ 239,677.00 2693 1497
2012-2013 $227,751.00 2559 1328
2011-2012 $214,455.00 2465 1265
2010-2011 $ 51,417.00 591 292
2009-2010 $ 44,118.00 513 240
2008-2009 $ 38,700.00 450 185
2007-2008 $ 22,428.00 267 114

*The Foundation allocated a fixed amount of $328,000.00 to support AP exams taken in 2016.
**Due to COVID-19 tests may have been taken and billed but the results are not back as of the preparation of this report.




Agenda Item:
Meeting Date:

Background/
Description:

Action Desired:

Policy/Strategic Plan
Reference:

Responsible Person(s):

209

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

International Baccalaureate® Diploma Programme Report

December 7, 2020

In 2020, there were 52 IB Diploma candidates. Forty-six of the
2020 candidates, or 88%, earned the IB Diploma. The
worldwide rate of passage in May 2020 was 79%.

Exams were not taken in 2020 due to the pandemic. Student
subject scores and receipt of the Diploma was based on student
work and internal assessments that were submitted to IB.
Millard North students scored passing or higher on 95% of the
subject assessments, Extended Essay and Theory of Knowledge
included.

The average exam score of Millard North students who passed
the diploma in 2020 was 4.89. Exams are scored from 7
(excellent) to 1 (very poor), with 4 being the minimum passing.
The international mean exam score in May 2020 was 4.67.

Candidates must accumulate at least 24 points to be awarded the
IB Diploma. The average number of Diploma points earned by

Millard North IB Diploma students was 31 out of 45 possible.
The international mean in May 2020 was 29.9.

Information Only

The Strategic Plan calls to support instructional best practices
and to ensure that all students are college and career ready.

Heather Phipps, Tony Weers & Kara Hutton

Superintendent’s Signature:

ALt



210

Diploma Program Participation at Millard North High School
The International Baccalaureate® Programs in Millard Public Schools culminate with the

Diploma Programme for 11™ and 12" grade students at Millard North High School. This is a
two-year diploma program that allows students to self-select into and out of the program. The
diploma program focuses on students completing all requirements to receive the IB diploma.

Requirements include 6 subject exams, a Theory of Knowledge course, a research-based
Extended Essay, and a Creativity, Activity, and Service (CAS) component. CAS includes
activities such as arts, sports, and service projects. This is in contrast to IB Diploma +
certificate programs, in which students may take individual IB Diploma courses and exams
with the aim of receiving a certificate for the successful completion of each exam much like
Advanced Placement® (AP) courses and exams.

In 2019-2020, the seventeenth year of IB Diploma exams at Millard North, there were 52
“diploma candidates” in the Millard North IB Diploma program.

IB Diploma Enrollment by School Year

The number of ninth and tenth grade students intending to participate in the IB Diploma
Programme fluctuates; however, some attrition is normal and expected between the Middle
Years Programme and the Diploma Programme. The majority of students who originally plan
to pursue the IB Diploma, but who later change plans do so after 9™ or 10™ grade before
actually beginning IB Diploma classes.




211

IB Diploma Programme Enrollment by School Year
Year 12-13 13-14 14-15 | 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20
Grade Students Within Middle Years Programme Intending to Enroll in the Diploma
Programme
9 100 116 100 77 112 95 111 83
10 77 84 82 91 58 82 67 89
Students Officially Participating in the Diploma Programme
11 60 53 57 53 55 54 60 49
12 40 48 40 50 50 46* 49* 52
Retention
Rate o, o () o, 0 o, () 0
11 to 12 85% 80% 75% 88% 94% 84% 82% 87%
Grade

* One student withdrew from the program before testing.

IB Diploma Results
In 2019-2020, Millard North had 52 IB Diploma candidates. Forty-six students, or 88%,
successfully earned or were “awarded” the IB Diploma.

Test Results

As part of the requirements to receive the IB diploma, each candidate must complete the
coursework and exams in six subjects during their junior and senior years. The exams for each
subject are taken on two successive days and may be in two or three separate tests, each one
typically two hours in length. The subject exams fall into two levels, Standard Level (SL) and
Higher Level (HL). Standard Level exams are taken after 1 year of coursework with the
exception of World Languages, which tests at the end of 5 years for French, German, and
Spanish and, at the end of 4 years for Latin. Higher Level exams follow 2 years of
coursework.



212

Due to the pandemic in 2020, the May exams were cancelled. Schools were asked to submit
all internally assessed and portfolio work. Students were awarded a Diploma which reflected
their standard of work. This included a review of each student’s coursework, established
assessments, rigor, and quality control built into the program. The International Baccalaureate
Organization stated:

“We will be using vast historical assessment data to ensure that we follow a rigorous process of
due diligence in what is a truly unprecedented situation. We will be undertaking significant
data analysis from previous exam sessions, individual school data, subject data as well as
comparative data of schools who have already completed uploading requirements and those
who have not.”

Millard North had 97 DP students who would have completed 290 subject tests, 52 Theory of
Knowledge tests, and 52 Extended Essays in May 2020. The scores awarded to students based
on their work and internal assessments are reflected in the charts and graphs below.

On the subject tests, Millard North students scored passing or higher on 270, which is 93%.
The distribution of the Millard North students’ IB Diploma subject exam scores is shown in the
table below.



213

Ave.
Ave. Grade
Grade (World-
Subject Ttl # 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 N (School) Wide)
Subject Group 1
ENGLISH A:
Literature HL 52 0 [ 13 ] 31 8 0 0 0 0 5.10 4.83
Subject Group 2
French B SL 11 0 2 7 1 1 0 0 0 491 5.07
German B SL 7 0 1 0 0 0 0 4.86 5.15
Latin SL 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 4.00 4.44
Spanish B SL 30 1 11| 11 7 0 0 0 0 5.20 5.12
Subject Group 3
Business Management HL 3 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 3.33 5.30
Business Management SL 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4.00 5.22
History SL 16 0 4 9 3 0 0 0 0 5.06 4.69
History Americas HL 16 1 1 8 6 0 0 0 0 481 4.35
Psychology SL 27 4 |13 9 1 0 0 0 0 5.74 4.76
Subject Group 4
Biology HL 22 0 0 9 2] 1 0 0 0 436 4.71
Biology SL 7 1 4 1 1 0 0 0 0 5.71 4.71
Chemistry HL 14 0 1 3 6 4 0 0 0 4.07 491
Computer Science HL 5 0 0 1 1 3 0 0 0 3.60 4.74
Physics HL 16 0 4 4 4 4 0 0 0 4.50 5.28
Physics SL 3 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 4.00 4.69
Subject Group 5
Math.Studies SL 2 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 5.50 4.45
Mathematics HL 25 3 4 4 13 1 0 0 0 4.80 5.04
Mathematics SL 7 0 0 4 0 0 0 4.43 4.79
Subject Group 6
Film HL 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 5.00 4.34
Film SL 2 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 4.00 3.98
Music Gr.Perf SL 18 0 6 11 0 0 0 0 1 5.35 4.97
Visual Arts HL 2 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 3.67 4.27
Visual Arts SL 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4.00 3.85
Score Scale:
7-Excellent 6-Very Good 5-Good 4-Satisfactory (Minimum Pass)
3-Mediocre 2-Poor 1-Very Poor N-Failure to Test

Exams are scored from 7 (excellent) to 1 (very poor), with 4 being the minimum passing score.
In the May 2020 subject tests, Millard North IB Diploma students’ average scores were higher
than the international averages in 11 of the 24, or 46%, of the subject areas examined. The
average exam score for Millard North students was 4.89, as compared to the May 2019 mean
of 4.86. The international mean for May 2020 is 4.67



214

Extended Essay and Theory of Knowledge

Additional requirements for the IB diploma include completion of an original research project
called the Extended Essay (EE) and a 2-year Theory of Knowledge (TOK) course, culminating
in an Essay on a topic chosen from ten prescribed prompts. These are in addition to the subject
tests, and are graded from A (excellent) to E (elementary). A grade of D or better must be
obtained on both the Extended Essay and the Theory of Knowledge Essay for a student to be
eligible to receive the IB Diploma. In other words, D is the minimum passing grade.

Grade distribution percentages are shown below for the 52 students that completed the IB
Diploma Programme in May 2020, with Millard North data from previous years included for
comparison. In 2020, 75% of Millard North students earned a grade of a C or better on the
Extended Essay (EE), as compared to 79% in 2019. Fifty percent of Millard North students
taking the Theory of Knowledge Essay scored a C or better, compared to 77% in 2019.
Passing scores of a D or better were received by 99% of Millard North Students on both essays
in 2020.

Millard North IB May 2011 - 2019 EE and TOK Results
Student Score Distribution Percentages

Extended Essay A B C D E
May 2020 4% 19% 52% 23% 2%
May 2019 2% 21% 56% 21% 0%
May 2018 0% 23% 52% 18% 0%
May 2017 12% 32% 42% 14% 0%
May 2016 6% 29% 47% 18% 0%
May 2015 5% 25.5% 44% 25.5% 0%

Theory Of Knowledge A B C D E
May 2020 4% 13% 33% 50% 0%
May 2019 0% 19% 58% 23% 0%
May 2018 0% 34% 57% 9% 0%
May 2017 0% 26% 64% 10% 0%
May 2016 8% 35% 51% 6% 0%
May 2015 0% 10% 77% 13% 0%

IB Diploma Points

IB Diploma candidates must earn at least 24 points to be awarded the IB Diploma. These
points come primarily from the subject tests, with up to three possible extra points based on the
student’s grades on the Extended Essay and Theory of Knowledge Essay. The maximum
possible point total is 45.

The average of IB Diploma points for all 46 students who received the IB Diploma during the
2019-2020 school year was 31 points. The international average in May 2020 was 29.9 points.
The highest number of Diploma points earned by a Millard North Student in 2020 was 40.



215



	Board Treasurer Report December 7 2020.pdf
	Board 12-07-20
	Millard Public Schools
	December 7, 2020


	Check Register 12-07-20
	Activity Funds Report 12-07-20

	Approval of Schematic Design for Norris Elem.pdf
	Norris Board Packet.pdf
	Sheets
	3 - OVERALL ELEVATIONS
	4 - ENLARGED ELEVATIONS



	Approval of Schematic Design for North Middle School.pdf
	NMS Board Packet.pdf
	Sheets
	A1-1A - FLOOR PLAN - AREA 'A'
	A1-1B - FLOOR PLAN - AREA 'B'
	A5-1A - REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - AREA 'A'
	A5-1B - REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - AREA 'B'



	Approval of Schematic Design for Central Middle School.pdf
	CMS Board Packet - long form.pdf
	Sheets
	PR1-0 - COMPOSITE SCOPE PLAN - MAIN LEVEL
	PR1-1 - COMPOSITE SCOPE PLAN - UPPER LEVEL
	PR1-1A - SCOPE PLAN -MAIN LEVEL - AREA 'A'
	PR1-1B - SCOPE PLAN -MAIN LEVEL - AREA 'B'
	PR1-1C - SCOPE PLAN -MAIN LEVEL - AREA 'C'
	PR1-1D - SCOPE PLAN -MAIN LEVEL - AREA 'D'
	PR1-2B - SCOPE PLAN -UPPER LEVEL - AREA 'B'
	PR1-2C - SCOPE PLAN -UPPER LEVEL - AREA 'C'
	PR1-2D - SCOPE PLAN -UPPER LEVEL - AREA 'D'
	PR1-2E - SCOPE PLAN -UPPER LEVEL - AREA 'E'
	PR1-2F - SCOPE PLAN -UPPER LEVEL - AREA 'F'



	Approval of 2020-2021 Resolution & Guidelines.pdf
	2020-2021 Resolution & Guidelines of the Board of Education
	2020-2021 Reopening Resolution and Guidelines




